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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.      ☑  Yes      o
No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files).    ☑  Yes     o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
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“accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
oLarge accelerated filer oAccelerated filer
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oNon-accelerated filer ☑Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) oEmerging growth company

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition
period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13 (a) of
the Exchange Act. o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes ☐
No ☑ 
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Sections 12,
13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed
by a court. ☑  Yes ☐ No

As of May 7, 2018, the registrant had 20,100,178 outstanding shares of common stock, $0.001 par value.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Below is a list of terms that are common to our industry and used throughout this document:

/day  = per day Mcf  = thousand cubic feet

Bbls  = barrels Mcfe  = thousand cubic feet of natural gas equivalents

Bcf  = billion cubic feet MMBbls  = million barrels

Bcfe  = billion cubic feet equivalents MMBOE = million barrels of oil equivalent

BOE  = barrel of oil equivalent MMBtu  = million British thermal units

Btu  = British thermal unit MMcf  = million cubic feet

MBbls  = thousand barrels MMcfe  = million cubic feet of natural gas
    equivalents

MBOE = thousand barrels of oil equivalent NGLs  = natural gas liquids

When we refer to oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids (“NGLs”) in “equivalents,” we are doing so to compare quantities
of natural gas with quantities of NGLs and oil or to express these different commodities in a common unit. In
calculating equivalents, we use a generally recognized standard in which 42 gallons is equal to one Bbl of oil or one
Bbl of NGLs and one Bbl of oil or one Bbl of NGLs is equal to six Mcf of natural gas. Also, when we refer to cubic
feet measurements, all measurements are at a pressure of 14.73 pounds per square inch.

References in this report to the “Successor” are to Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc., formerly known as VNR Finance
Corp., and its subsidiaries, including Vanguard Natural Gas, LLC (“VNG”), VNR Holdings, LLC (“VNRH”), Vanguard
Operating, LLC (“VO”), Escambia Operating Co. LLC (“EOC”), Escambia Asset Co. LLC (“EAC”), Eagle Rock Energy
Acquisition Co., Inc. (“ERAC”), Eagle Rock Upstream Development Co., Inc. (“ERUD”), Eagle Rock Acquisition
Partnership, L.P. (“ERAP”), Eagle Rock Energy Acquisition Co. II, Inc. (“ERAC II”), Eagle Rock Upstream Development
Co. II, Inc. (“ERUD II”) and Eagle Rock Acquisition Partnership II, L.P. (“ERAP II”).

References in this report to the “Predecessor” are to Vanguard Natural Resources, LLC, individually and collectively
with its subsidiaries.

References in this report to “us,” “we,” “our,” the “Company,” “Vanguard,” or “VNR” or like terms refer to Vanguard Natural
Resources, LLC for the period prior to emergence from bankruptcy on August 1, 2017 (the “Effective Date”) and to
Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. for the period as of and following the Effective Date.
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Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements and information in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the “Quarterly Report”) may constitute
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).  Statements
included in this Quarterly Report that are not historical facts (including any statements concerning plans and
objectives of management for future operations or economic performance, or assumptions or forecasts related thereto),
including, without limitation, the information set forth in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, are forward-looking statements.  These statements can be identified by the use of
forward-looking terminology including “may,” “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue,” or other similar
words. These statements discuss future expectations, contain projections of results of operations or of financial
condition or state other “forward-looking” information. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to,
statements we make concerning future actions, conditions or events, future operating results, income or cash flow.

These statements are accompanied by cautionary language identifying important factors, though not necessarily all
such factors, which could cause future outcomes to differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and beliefs concerning future
developments and their potential effect on us. Such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated as of the date of this report.
Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct. Important factors that could
cause our actual results to differ materially from the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements
include, among other things, those set forth in the Risk Factors section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 (the “2017 Annual Report”), and this Quarterly Report, and those set forth from
time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), which are available on our
website at www.vnrenergy.com and through the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering and Retrieval System at
www.sec.gov. These factors and risks include, but are not limited to:

•our ability to obtain sufficient financing to execute our business plan post-emergence;

• our ability to meet our liquidity
needs;

•our ability to access the public capital markets;

•risks relating to any of our unforeseen liabilities;

•declines in oil, NGLs or natural gas prices;

•the level of success in exploration, development and production activities;

•adverse weather conditions that may negatively impact development or production activities;

•the timing of exploitation and development expenditures;

•inaccuracies of reserve estimates or assumptions underlying them;

•revisions to reserve estimates as a result of changes in commodity prices;
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•impacts to financial statements as a result of impairment write-downs;

•risks related to the level of indebtedness and periodic redeterminations of the borrowing base under our creditagreements;

•ability to comply with restrictive covenants contained in the agreements governing our indebtedness that mayadversely affect operational flexibility;

•ability to generate sufficient cash flows from operations to meet the internally funded portion of any capitalexpenditures budget;

•ability to obtain external capital to finance exploration and development operations and acquisitions;
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•federal, state and local initiatives and efforts relating to the regulation of hydraulic fracturing;

•failure of properties to yield oil or natural gas in commercially viable quantities;

•uninsured or underinsured losses resulting from oil and natural gas operations;

•ability to access oil and natural gas markets due to market conditions or operational impediments;

•the impact and costs of compliance with laws and regulations governing oil and natural gas operations;

•ability to replace oil and natural gas reserves;

•any loss of senior management or technical personnel;

•competition in the oil and natural gas industry;

•risks arising out of hedging transactions;

•the costs and effects of litigation;

•sabotage, terrorism or other malicious intentional acts (including cyber-attacks), war and other similar acts that disruptoperations or cause damage greater than covered by insurance; and

•costs of tax treatment as a corporation.

All forward-looking statements included in this report are based on information available to us on the date of this
report. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable
to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained
throughout this report.
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

VANGUARD NATURAL RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per unit data)
(Unaudited)

Successor Predecessor
Three
Months

Three
Months

Ended Ended
March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

Revenues:
Oil sales $46,111 $ 44,630
Natural gas sales 55,267 57,462
NGLs sales 21,897 16,664
Oil, natural gas and NGLs sales 123,275 118,756
Net gains (losses) on commodity derivative contracts (18,585 ) 7
Total revenues and gains (losses) on commodity derivative contracts 104,690 118,763
Costs and expenses:
Production:
Lease operating expenses 30,995 38,481
Transportation, gathering, processing and compression 11,502 —
Production and other taxes 9,781 10,065
Depreciation, depletion, amortization, and accretion 40,039 25,729
Impairment of oil and natural gas properties 14,601 —
Exploration expense 1,316 —
Selling, general and administrative expenses 12,736 10,295
Total costs and expenses 120,970 84,570
Income (loss) from operations (16,280 ) 34,193
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (14,753 ) (16,440 )
Net gains on interest rate derivative contracts — 30
Other 149 55
Total other expense, net (14,604 ) (16,355 )
Income (loss) before reorganization items (30,884 ) 17,838
Reorganization items (1,707 ) (26,746 )
Net loss (32,591 ) (8,908 )
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interests (93 ) (17 )
Net loss attributable to Vanguard stockholders/unitholders (32,684 ) (8,925 )
Distributions to Preferred unitholders — (2,230 )
Net loss attributable to Common stockholders/Common and Class B unitholders $(32,684) $ (11,155 )
Net loss per share/unit – basic and diluted $(1.63 ) $ (0.08 )
Weighted average Common shares/units outstanding
Common shares/units – basic and diluted 20,100 130,957
Predecessor Class B units – basic and diluted — 420
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

Edgar Filing: Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. - Form 10-Q

9



3

Edgar Filing: Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. - Form 10-Q

10



VANGUARD NATURAL RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

Successor
March 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $9,144 $ 2,762
Trade accounts receivable, net 53,343 67,248
Derivative assets — 2,258
Restricted cash 6,243 7,255
Other current assets 4,689 3,934
Total current assets 73,419 83,457
Oil and natural gas properties
Proved properties 1,605,480 1,560,552
Unproved properties 82,673 85,393

1,688,153 1,645,945
Accumulated depletion, amortization and impairment (164,567 ) (112,553 )
Oil and natural gas properties, net – successful efforts method 1,523,586 1,533,392
Other assets
Other assets 28,368 26,671
Total assets $1,625,373 $ 1,643,520

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable: 
Trade $9,956 $ 9,141
Accrued liabilities:
Lease operating 10,812 13,560
Developmental capital 9,312 12,275
Interest 4,225 6,312
Production and other taxes 20,193 20,982
Other 11,621 9,005
Derivative liabilities 48,270 39,212
Oil and natural gas revenue payable 33,416 37,422
Other current liabilities 12,917 12,175
Total current liabilities 160,722 160,084
Long-term debt, net of current portion (Note 4) 920,080 905,976
Derivative liabilities 25,460 27,483
Asset retirement obligations, net of current portion 153,213 151,717
Other long-term liabilities 642 732
Total liabilities 1,260,117 1,245,992
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders’ equity (Note 9)
Successor common stock ($0.001 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized
and 20,100,178 shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017)

20 20
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Successor additional paid-in capital 507,136 506,640
Successor accumulated deficit (144,094 ) (111,410 )
Total stockholders' equity 363,062 395,250
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary 2,194 2,278
Total stockholders' equity attributable to Common stockholders 365,256 397,528
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,625,373 $ 1,643,520
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

4
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (SUCCESSOR)
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Common
Stock Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Non-
controlling
Interest

Total
Stockholders'
Equity

Balance at December 31, 2017 (Successor) 20,100 $ 20 $506,640 $ (111,410 ) $ 2,278 $ 397,528
Net income (loss) — — — (32,684 ) 93 (32,591 )
Share-based compensation — — 496 — — 496
Potato Hills cash distribution to non-controlling
interest — — — — (177 ) (177 )

Balance at March 31, 2018 (Successor) 20,100 $ 20 $507,136 $ (144,094 ) $ 2,194 $ 365,256

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

5
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VANGUARD NATURAL RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Successor Predecessor
Three
Months

Three
Months

Ended Ended
March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

Operating activities
Net loss $(32,591) $ (8,908 )
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion, amortization, and accretion 40,039 25,729
Impairment of oil and natural gas properties 14,601 —
Amortization of deferred financing costs 677 1,162
Amortization of debt discount — 348
Non-cash reorganization items — 19,465
Compensation related items 496 2,453
Net (gains) losses on commodity and interest rate derivative contracts 18,585 (37 )
Cash settlements received (paid) on matured commodity derivative contracts (9,292 ) 7
Cash settlements paid on matured interest rate derivative contracts — (95 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable 13,905 6,757
Other current assets (692 ) 1,053
Net premiums paid on commodity derivative contracts — (16 )
Accounts payable and oil and natural gas revenue payable (3,191 ) (7,311 )
Payable to affiliates — (858 )
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (6,292 ) 5,471
Other assets 4 5,954
Net cash provided by operating activities 36,249 51,174
Investing activities
Additions to property and equipment (68 ) (25 )
Additions to oil and natural gas properties (23,270 ) (13,651 )
Deposits and prepayments of oil and natural gas properties (20,777 ) (7,939 )
Proceeds from the sale of oil and natural gas properties — 995
Net cash used in investing activities (44,115 ) (20,620 )
Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 48,000 —
Repayment of long-term debt (34,554 ) (21,516 )
Potato Hills distribution to non-controlling interest (177 ) —
Financing fees (33 ) (53 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 13,236 (21,569 )
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 5,370 8,985
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period 10,017 49,957
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $15,387 $ 58,942

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $16,155 $ 10,880
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Non-cash investing activity:
Asset retirement obligations, net $136 $ 5,312

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

6
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VANGUARD NATURAL RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Unaudited)

Description of the Business

We are an exploration and production company engaged in the production and development of oil and natural gas
properties in the United States. The Company is currently focused on adding value by efficiently operating our
producing assets and, in certain areas, applying modern drilling and completion technologies in order to fully assess
and realize potential development upside. Our primary business objective is to increase shareholder value by growing
reserves, production and cash flow in a capital efficient manner. Through our operating subsidiaries, as of March 31,
2018, we own properties and oil and natural gas reserves primarily located in nine operating areas:

•the Green River Basin in Wyoming;

•the Piceance Basin in Colorado;

•the Permian Basin in West Texas and New Mexico;

•the Arkoma Basin in Arkansas and Oklahoma;

•the Gulf Coast Basin in Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi and Alabama;

•the Big Horn Basin in Wyoming and Montana;

•the Anadarko Basin in Oklahoma and North Texas;

•the Wind River Basin in Wyoming; and

•the Powder River Basin in Wyoming.

Following the completion of the financial restructuring on August 1, 2017 (see Note 1, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, (b) Emergence from Voluntary Reorganization under Chapter 11 and (c) Fresh-Start
Accounting”), the Company had 20.1 million shares of its common stock outstanding. The Company’s shares of
common stock and warrants are traded and quoted on the OTCQX market (which is operated by OTC Markets Group,
Inc.) under the symbol VNRR.

7
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1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements are unaudited and were prepared from our records.
We derived the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2017 from the audited financial statements
contained in our 2017 Annual Report.  Because this is an interim period filing presented using a condensed format, it
does not include all of the disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
(“GAAP”). You should read this Quarterly Report along with our 2017 Annual Report, which contains a summary of
our significant accounting policies and other disclosures. In our opinion, we have made all adjustments which are of a
normal, recurring nature to fairly present our interim period results. Information for interim periods may not be
indicative of our operating results for the entire year.

As of March 31, 2018, our significant accounting policies are consistent with those discussed in Note 1 of the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our 2017 Annual Report.

(a)Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The condensed consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 (Successor), and for
the three months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor)
include our accounts and those of our subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated
upon consolidation.

We consolidate Potato Hills Gas Gathering System as we have the ability to control the operating and financial
decisions and policies of the entity through our 51% ownership and reflected the non-controlling interest as a separate
element in our condensed consolidated financial statements.

(b)Emergence from Voluntary Reorganization under Chapter 11

On February 1, 2017 (the “Petition Date”), the Predecessor and certain of its subsidiaries (such subsidiaries, together
with the Predecessor, the “Debtors”) filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas (the
“Bankruptcy Court”). During the pendency of the Chapter 11 proceedings, the Debtors operated their businesses as
“debtors-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions
of the Bankruptcy Code. On July 18, 2017, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order confirming the Final Plan (as
defined in Note 2). The Company emerged from bankruptcy effective August 1, 2017. Please read Note 2, “Emergence
From Voluntary Reorganization Under Chapter 11 Proceedings” for a discussion of the Chapter 11 Cases and the Final
Plan.

(c)Fresh-Start Accounting

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 852, Reorganizations (“ASC Topic 852”), we adopted
fresh-start accounting as (i) the fair value of the Successor Company’s total assets (the “Reorganization Value”)
immediately prior to the date of confirmation was less than the post-petition liabilities and allowed claims and (ii) the
holders of our existing voting shares of the Predecessor entity received less than 50% of the voting shares of the
emerging entity. Upon the adoption of fresh-start accounting, our assets and liabilities were recorded at their fair
values as of the fresh-start reporting date. Our adoption of fresh-start accounting may materially affect our results of
operations following the fresh-start reporting date, as we have a new basis in our assets and liabilities. The Successor
evaluated transaction activity between July 31, 2017 and the Effective Date and concluded that an accounting
convenience date of July 31, 2017 (the “Convenience Date”) was appropriate for the adoption of fresh-start accounting
which resulted in the Successor becoming a new entity for financial reporting purposes as of the Convenience Date.
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References to “Successor” or “Successor Company” relate to the financial position and results of operations of the
reorganized Company subsequent to July 31, 2017. References to “Predecessor” or “Predecessor Company” relate to the
financial position and results of operations of the Company prior to, and including, July 31, 2017. As such, these
periods are not comparable, are labeled Successor or Predecessor, and are separated by a bold black line.

(d)Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the
condensed consolidated balance sheets to the amounts shown in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows
(in thousands):

8
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Successor Predecessor
March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,144 $ 58,942
Restricted cash 6,243 —
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 15,387 $ 58,942

(e)Oil and Natural Gas Properties - Transition from Full Cost Method to Successful Efforts Accounting Method

Under GAAP, there are two allowed methods of accounting for oil and natural gas properties: the full cost method and
the successful efforts method. Entities engaged in the production of oil and natural gas have the option of selecting
either method for application in the accounting for their properties. The principal differences between the two methods
are in the treatment of exploration costs, the calculation of depreciation, depletion and amortization expense (“DD&A”),
and the assessment of impairment of oil and natural gas properties.

Prior to July 31, 2017, we followed the full cost method of accounting. Under the full cost method, substantially all
costs incurred in connection with the acquisition, development and exploration of oil, natural gas and NGLs reserves
are capitalized. These capitalized amounts include the costs of unproved properties, internal costs directly related to
acquisitions, development and exploration activities, asset retirement costs and capitalized interest. Under the full cost
method, both dry hole costs and geological and geophysical costs are capitalized into the full cost pool, which is
subject to amortization and ceiling test limitations. Capitalized costs associated with proved reserves are amortized
over the life of the reserves using the unit of production method. Conversely, capitalized costs associated with
unproved properties are excluded from the amortizable base until these properties are evaluated, which occurred on a
quarterly basis. Specifically, costs are transferred to the amortizable base when properties are determined to have
proved reserves. In addition, we transferred unproved property costs to the amortizable base when unproved properties
were evaluated as being impaired and as exploratory wells were determined to be unsuccessful. Additionally, the
amortizable base includes estimated future development costs, dismantlement, restoration and abandonment costs net
of estimated salvage values. Capitalized costs are limited to a ceiling based on the present value of future net
revenues, computed using the 12-month unweighted average of first-day-of-the-month historical price, the “12-month
average price” discounted at 10%, plus the lower of cost or fair market value of unproved properties.

Because a new entity had been created at the Effective Date, and there is no comparability to the Predecessor’s
financial statements, upon emergence from bankruptcy, we elected to adopt the successful efforts method of
accounting for our oil and natural gas properties. We believe that application of successful efforts accounting will
provide greater transparency in the results of our oil and natural gas properties and enhance decision making and
capital allocation processes. Additionally, application of the successful efforts method will eliminate proved property
impairments based on historical prices, which are not indicative of the fair value of our oil and natural gas properties,
and better reflect the true economics of developing our oil and natural gas reserves. Therefore, from August 1, 2017
we have used the successful efforts method to account for our investment in oil and natural gas properties in the
Successor.

Under the successful efforts method, we capitalize the costs of acquiring unproved and proved oil and natural gas
leasehold acreage. When proved reserves are found on an unproved property, the associated leasehold cost is
transferred to proved properties. Significant unproved leases are reviewed periodically, and a valuation allowance is
provided for any estimated decline in value. In determining whether an unproved property is impaired, the Company
considers numerous factors including, but not limited to, current exploration and development plans, favorable or
unfavorable exploration activity on the property being evaluated and/or adjacent properties, and the remaining months
in the lease term for the property. Development costs are capitalized, including the costs of unsuccessful and
successful development wells and the costs to drill and equip exploratory wells that find proved reserves. Exploration
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costs, including unsuccessful exploratory wells and geological and geophysical costs, are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

DD&A of the leasehold and development costs that are capitalized into proved oil and natural gas properties are
computed using the units-of-production method, at the district level, based on total proved reserves and proved
developed reserves, respectively. Upon sale or retirement of oil and gas properties, the costs and related accumulated
DD&A are eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is recognized.

9
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Impairment of Oil and Natural Gas Properties

Proved oil and natural gas properties are assessed for impairment in accordance with ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant
and Equipment, when events and circumstances indicate a decline in the recoverability of the carrying values of such
properties, such as a negative revision of reserves estimates or sustained decrease in commodity prices, but at least
annually. We estimate future cash flows expected in connection with the properties and compare such future cash
flows to the carrying amount of the properties to determine if the carrying amount is recoverable. If the sum of the
undiscounted pretax cash flows is less than the carrying amount, then the carrying amount is written down to its
estimated fair value.

Unproved properties are evaluated on a specific-asset basis or in groups of similar assets, as applicable. The Company
performs periodic assessments of unproved oil and natural gas properties for impairment and recognizes a loss at the
time of impairment. In determining whether an unproved property is impaired, the Company considers numerous
factors including, but not limited to, current development and exploration drilling plans, favorable or unfavorable
exploration activity on adjacent leaseholds, future reserve cash flows and the remaining lease term.

(f)Income Taxes

Prior to July 31, 2017, the Predecessor was a limited liability corporation treated as a partnership for federal and state
income tax purposes, in which the taxable income or loss of the Predecessor were passed through to its unitholders.
Limited liability companies are subject to Texas margin tax. In addition, certain of the Predecessor’s subsidiaries were
C corporations subject to federal and state income taxes. Therefore, with the exception of the state of Texas and
certain subsidiaries, the Predecessor did not directly pay federal and state income taxes and recognition was not given
to federal and state income taxes for the operations of the Predecessor.

Effective upon consummation of the Final Plan, the Successor became a C corporation subject to federal and state
income taxes. As a C corporation, we account for income taxes, as required, under the liability method. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax
credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in net income or loss in the period that includes
the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it
is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Our policy is to record interest and penalties relating to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. At March 31,
2018, we did not have any accrued liability for uncertain tax positions and do not anticipate recognition of any
significant liabilities for uncertain tax positions during the next 12 months. The Company incurred a net taxable loss
in the current taxable period. Thus no current income taxes are anticipated to be paid and no net benefit will be
recorded in the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements due to the full valuation allowance on the tax
assets.

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. government enacted comprehensive tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”). In response, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 118 (“SAB 118”), which
provides guidance on accounting for the tax effects of the Tax Act. SAB 118 provides a measurement period that
should not extend beyond one year from the Tax Act enactment date for companies to complete the accounting under
ASC Topic 740, “Uncertain Tax Positions” (“ASC Topic 740”). In accordance with SAB 118, a company must reflect the
income tax effects of those aspects of the Tax Act for which the accounting under ASC Topic 740 is complete. To the
extent that a company’s accounting for certain income tax effects of the Tax Act is incomplete but it is able to
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determine a reasonable estimate, it must record a provisional estimate in the financial statements. If a company cannot
determine a provisional estimate to be included in the financial statements, it should continue to apply ASC Topic 740
on the basis of the provisions of the tax laws that were in effect immediately before the enactment of the Tax Act.
Refer to Note 11, “Income Taxes,” for more information on the Company’s accounting for income taxes.

10
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(g)New Pronouncements Recently Adopted

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No.
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09”), which supersedes nearly all existing revenue
recognition guidance under GAAP. The core principle of ASU 2014-09 is to recognize revenues when promised
goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 defines a five-step process to achieve this core principle and,
in doing so, more judgment and estimates may be required within the revenue recognition process than are required
under existing GAAP.

Throughout 2015 and 2016, the FASB issued a series of updates to the revenue recognition guidance in ASC Topic
606, including ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC Topic 606): Deferral of the
Effective Date, ASU No. 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC Topic 606”): Principal versus Agent
Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net), ASU No. 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing, ASU No. 2016-12, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients, and ASU No. 2016-20, Technical
Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

In conjunction with fresh-start accounting, the Company elected to early adopt the standard effective August 1, 2017.
We adopted the standard using the modified retrospective method, by which fresh-start accounting allows us to apply
the new standard to all new contracts entered into on or after August 1, 2017, and all existing contracts for which all
(or substantially all) of the revenue has not been recognized under legacy revenue guidance as of August 1, 2017. The
adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. See Note 3, “Impact of
ASC Topic 606,” for further details related to the Company’s adoption of this standard.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (ASC Topic 230): Restricted Cash
(“ASU 2016-18”), which is intended to address diversity in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted
cash on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 was applied retrospectively as of the date of adoption and is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years (early
adoption permitted). The Company adopted ASU 2016-18 effective January 1, 2018. The adoption of this ASU
resulted in the inclusion of restricted cash in the beginning and ending balances of cash on the condensed consolidated
statements of cash flows and disclosure reconciling cash and cash equivalents presented on the condensed
consolidated balance sheets to cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash on the condensed consolidated statements of
cash flows. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position of results
of operations as the impact was primarily related to presentation.

(h)New Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Adopted

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (ASC Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”), which requires
lessees to recognize at the commencement date for all leases, with the exception of short-term leases, (i) a lease
liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis,
and (ii) a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right to use, or control the use of, a specified
asset for the lease term. ASU 2016-02 will take effect for public companies for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018 and should be adopted using a modified retrospective approach.
We are currently evaluating the provisions of ASU 2016-02 and assessing the impact, if any, it may have on our
financial position and results of operations. As part of our assessment work to date, we have allocated resources to the
implementation and have begun contract and lease identification and review.

(i)Use of Estimates
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
The most significant estimates pertain to proved oil, natural gas and NGLs reserves and related future cash flows, the
fair value of derivative contracts, asset retirement obligations, accrued oil, natural gas and NGLs revenues and
expenses, as well as estimates of expenses related to depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion expense,
income taxes, and non-cash compensation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

11
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2. Emergence from Voluntary Reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code

On February 1, 2017, the Debtors filed voluntary petitions for relief (collectively, the “Bankruptcy Petitions” and, the
cases commenced thereby, the “Chapter 11 Cases”) under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court.
The Chapter 11 Cases were administered under the caption “In re Vanguard Natural Resources, LLC, et al.”

On July 18, 2017, the Bankruptcy Court entered the Order Confirming Debtors’ Modified Second Amended Joint Plan
of Reorganization Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code (the “Confirmation Order”), which approved and
confirmed the Debtors’ Modified Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy
Code (the “Final Plan”). The Final Plan provided for the reorganization of the Debtors as a going concern and
significantly reduced the long-term debt and annual interest payments of the Successor. During the pendency of the
Chapter 11 Cases, we operated our business as debtors-in-possession in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Bankruptcy Court.

The Debtors satisfied all conditions precedent under the Final Plan and emerged from bankruptcy on August 1, 2017.
The Successor reorganized as a Delaware corporation named Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. on the Effective Date.
Pursuant to the Final Plan, each of the Predecessor’s equity securities outstanding immediately before the Effective
Date (including any unvested restricted units held by employees or officers of the Debtor, or options and warrants to
purchase such securities) have been cancelled and are of no further force or effect as of the Effective Date. Under the
Final Plan, the Debtors’ new organizational documents became effective on the Effective Date. The Successor’s new
organizational documents authorize the Successor to issue new equity, certain of which was issued to holders of
allowed claims pursuant to the Final Plan on the Effective Date. In addition, on the Effective Date, the Successor
entered into a registration rights agreement with certain equity holders. As of August 1, 2017, the Successor issued
20.1 million outstanding shares of common stock, $0.001 par value (“Common Stock”).

3.  Impact of ASC Topic 606 Adoption

In conjunction with the application of fresh-start accounting, we adopted ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“ASC Topic 606”). We adopted using the modified retrospective method, which fresh-start accounting
allows us to apply the new standard to all new contracts entered into after August 1, 2017 and all existing contracts for
which all (or substantially all) of the revenue has not been recognized under legacy revenue guidance as of July 31,
2017. ASC Topic 606 supersedes previous revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition
(“ASC Topic 605”) and includes a five-step revenue recognition model to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

The impact of adoption on our current period results is as follows (in thousands):
Successor
Three Months Ended March 31, 2018
Under
ASC 606

Under
ASC 605 Increase/(Decrease)

Revenues:
    Oil sales $46,111 $46,111 $ —
    Natural gas sales 55,267 46,731 8,536
    NGLs sales 21,897 18,931 2,966
Oil, natural gas and NGLs sales 123,275 111,773 11,502
    Net losses on commodity derivative contracts (18,585 ) (18,585 ) —
Total revenues and losses on commodity derivative contracts $104,690 $93,188 $ 11,502
Costs and expenses:
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 Transportation, gathering, processing, and compression $11,502 $— $ 11,502
Net loss $(32,591 ) $(32,591) $ —

        Changes to sales of natural gas and NGLs, and transportation, gathering, processing, and compression expense
are due to the conclusion that the Company represents the principal and the ultimate third party is our customer in
certain natural gas processing and marketing agreements with certain midstream entities in accordance with the
control model in ASC Topic 606. This is a change from previous conclusions reached for these agreements utilizing
the principal versus agent indicators under

12
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ASC Topic 605 where we acted as the agent and the mid-stream processing entity was our customer. As a result, we
modified our presentation of revenues and expenses for these agreements. Revenues related to these agreements are
now presented on a gross basis for amounts expected to be received from third-party customers through the marketing
process. Transportation, gathering, processing and compression expenses related to these agreements, incurred prior to
the transfer of control to the customer at the tailgate of the natural gas processing facilities, are now presented as
Transportation, gathering, processing, and compression expense.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Sales of oil, natural gas and NGLs are recognized at the point control of the product is transferred to the customer and
collectability is reasonably assured. Virtually all of our contracts’ pricing provisions are tied to a market index, with
certain adjustments based on, among other factors, whether a well delivers to a gathering or transmission line, quality
of the oil or natural gas, and prevailing supply and demand conditions. As a result, the price of the oil, natural gas, and
NGLs fluctuates to remain competitive with other available oil, natural gas, and NGLs supplies.
Natural gas and NGLs Sales

Under most of our natural gas processing contracts, we deliver natural gas to a midstream processing entity at the
wellhead or the inlet of the midstream processing entity’s system. The midstream processing entity gathers and
processes the natural gas and remits proceeds to us for the resulting sales of NGLs and residue gas. In these scenarios,
the Company evaluates whether we are the principal or the agent in the transaction. For those contracts where we have
concluded we are the principal and the ultimate third party is our customer, we recognize revenue on a gross basis,
with transportation, gathering, processing and compression fees presented as an expense in our condensed
consolidated statement of operations. Alternatively, for those contracts where we have concluded the Company is the
agent and the midstream processing entity is our customer, we recognize natural gas and NGLs revenues based on the
net amount of the proceeds received from the midstream processing.

In certain natural gas processing agreements, we may elect to take our residue gas and/or NGLs in-kind at the tailgate
of the midstream entity’s processing plant and subsequently market the product. Through the marketing process, we
deliver product to the ultimate third-party purchaser at a contractually agreed-upon delivery point and receive a
specified index price from the purchaser. In this scenario, we recognize revenue when control transfers to the
purchaser at the delivery point based on the index price received from the purchaser. The gathering, processing and
compression fees attributable to the gas processing contract, as well as any transportation fees incurred to deliver the
product to the purchaser, are presented as Transportation, gathering, processing and compression expense in our
condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Oil sales

Our oil sales contracts are generally structured in one of the following ways:

•We sell oil production at the wellhead and collect an agreed-upon index price, net of pricing differentials. In this
scenario, we recognize revenue when control transfers to the purchaser at the wellhead at the net price received.

•

We deliver oil to the purchaser at a contractually agreed-upon delivery point at which the purchaser takes custody,
title, and risk of loss of the product. Under this arrangement, we pay a third party to transport the product and receive
a specified index price from the purchaser with no deduction. In this scenario, we recognize revenue when control
transfers to the purchaser at the delivery point based on the price received from the purchaser. Oil revenues are
recorded net of these third-party transportation fees in our condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Production imbalances
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Previously, the Company elected to utilize the entitlements method to account for natural gas production imbalances
which is no longer applicable. In conjunction with the adoption of ASC Topic 606, for the three months ended March
31, 2018, there was no material impact to the financial statements due to this change in accounting for our production
imbalances.

Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

A significant number of our product sales are short-term in nature with a contract term of one year or less. For those
contracts, we have utilized the practical expedient in ASC 606-10-50-14 exempting the Company from disclosure of
the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations if the performance obligation is part of a contract
that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

13
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For our product sales that have a contract term greater than one year, we have utilized the practical expedient in ASC
606-10-50-14(a) which states the Company is not required to disclose the transaction price allocated to remaining
performance obligations if the variable consideration is allocated entirely to a wholly unsatisfied performance
obligation. Under these sales contracts, each unit of product generally represents a separate performance obligation;
therefore, future volumes are wholly unsatisfied and disclosure of the transaction price allocated to remaining
performance obligations is not required.

Contract balances

Under our product sales contracts, we invoice customers once our performance obligations have been satisfied, at
which point payment is unconditional. Accordingly, our product sales contracts do not give rise to contract assets or
liabilities under ASC Topic 606.

Prior-period performance obligations

We record revenue in the month production is delivered to the purchaser. However, settlement statements for certain
natural gas and NGL sales may not be received for 30 to 90 days after the date production is delivered, and as a result,
we are required to estimate the amount of production delivered to the purchaser and the price that will be received for
the sale of the product. We record the differences between our estimates and the actual amounts received for product
sales in the month that payment is received from the purchaser. We have existing internal controls for our revenue
estimation process and related accruals. For the three months ended March 31, 2018, revenue recognized in the
reporting period related to performance obligations satisfied in prior reporting periods was not material.

4. Debt

Our financing arrangements consisted of the following as of the date indicated (in thousands): 
Successor

Description Interest Rate Maturity Date March 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Successor Credit Facility Variable (1) February 1, 2021 $715,000 $ 700,000
Successor Term Loan Variable (2) May 1, 2021 124,375 124,688
Senior Notes due 2024 9.0% February 15, 2024 80,722 80,722
Lease Financing Obligations 4.16% August 10, 2020 (3) 14,041 15,205
Unamortized deferred financing costs (7,994 ) (8,639 )
Total debt $926,144 $ 911,976
Less:
Current portion of Term Loan (1,250 ) (1,250 )
Current portion of Lease Financing Obligation (4,814 ) (4,750 )
Total long-term debt $920,080 $ 905,976

(1)Variable interest rate of 5.22% and 4.90% at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 respectively.
(2)Variable interest rate of 9.22% and 8.90% at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 respectively.

(3)The Lease Financing Obligations expire on August 10, 2020, except for certain obligations which expire on July10, 2021.

Successor Credit Facility
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On the Effective Date, VNG, as borrower, entered into the Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as
of August 1, 2017 (the “Successor Credit Facility”), by and among VNG as borrower, Citibank, N.A., as administrative
agent (the “Administrative Agent”) and Issuing Bank, and the lenders party thereto. Pursuant to the Successor Credit
Facility, the lenders party thereto agreed to provide VNG with an $850.0 million exit senior secured reserve-based
revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Loan”). The initial borrowing base available under the Successor Credit
Facility as of the Effective Date was $850.0 million and the aggregate principal amount of Revolving Loans
outstanding under the Successor Credit Facility as of the Effective Date was $730.0 million. The Successor Credit
Facility also includes an additional $125.0 million senior secured term loan (the “Term Loan”). On December 21, 2017,
the borrowing base was reduced to $825.0 million following the completion of the sale of our properties in the
Williston basin.
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At March 31, 2018, there were $715.0 million of outstanding borrowings and $109.8 million of borrowing capacity
under the Successor Credit Facility, after reflecting a $0.2 million reduction in availability for letters of credit
(discussed below).

The borrowing base under the Successor Credit Facility is subject to adjustments from time to time but not less than
on a semi-annual basis based on the projected discounted present value of estimated future net cash flows (as
determined by the lenders’ petroleum engineers utilizing the lenders’ internal projection of future oil, natural gas and
NGLs prices) from our proved oil, natural gas and NGLs reserves. The next borrowing base redetermination is
scheduled for August of 2018.

The maturity date of the Successor Credit Facility is February 1, 2021 with respect to the Revolving Loans and May 1,
2021 with respect to the Term Loan. Until the maturity date for the Term Loan, the Term Loan shall bear an interest
rate equal to (i) the alternative base rate plus an applicable margin of 6.50% for an Alternate Base Rate loan or (ii)
adjusted 30-day LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 7.50% for a Eurodollar loan. Until the maturity date for the
Revolving Loans, the Revolving Loans shall bear interest at a rate per annum equal to (i) the alternative base rate plus
an applicable margin of 1.75% to 2.75%, based on the borrowing base utilization percentage under the Successor
Credit Facility or (ii) adjusted 30-day LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 2.75% to 3.75%, based on the borrowing
base utilization percentage under the Successor Credit Facility.

Unused commitments under the Successor Credit Facility will accrue a commitment fee of 0.5%, payable quarterly in
arrears.

VNG may elect, at its option, to prepay any borrowing outstanding under the Revolving Loans without premium or
penalty (except with respect to any break funding payments which may be payable pursuant to the terms of the
Successor Credit Facility). VNG may be required to make mandatory prepayments of the Revolving Loans in
connection with certain borrowing base deficiencies or asset divestitures.

VNG is required to repay the Term Loans on the last day of each March, June, September and December
(commencing with the first full fiscal quarter ended after the Effective Date), in each case, in an amount equal to
0.25% of the original principal amount of such Term Loans and, on the Maturity Date, the remainder of the principal
amount of the Term Loans outstanding on such date, together in each case with accrued and unpaid interest on the
principal amount to be paid but excluding the date of such payment. The table below shows the amounts of required
payments under the Term Loan for each year as of March 31, 2018 (in thousands):

Year Required
Payments

2018 $ 938
2019 1,250
2020 1,250
2021 through Maturity date 120,937

Additionally, if (i) VNG has outstanding borrowings, undrawn letters of credit and reimbursement obligations in
respect of letters of credit in excess of the aggregate revolving commitments or (ii) unrestricted cash and cash
equivalents of VNG and the Guarantors (as defined below) exceeds $35.0 million as of the close of business on the
most recently ended business day, VNG is also required to make mandatory prepayments, subject to limited
exceptions.

The obligations under the Successor Credit Facility are guaranteed by the Successor and all of VNG’s subsidiaries (the
“Guarantors”), subject to limited exceptions, and secured on a first-priority basis by substantially all of VNG’s and the

Edgar Filing: Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. - Form 10-Q

31



Guarantors’ assets, including, without limitation, liens on at least 95% of the total value of VNG’s and the Guarantors’
oil and natural gas properties, and pledges of stock of all other direct and indirect subsidiaries of VNG, subject to
certain limited exceptions.

The Successor Credit Facility contains certain customary representations and warranties, including, without limitation:
organization; powers; authority; enforceability; approvals; no conflicts; financial condition; no material adverse
change; litigation; environmental matters; compliance with laws and agreements; no defaults; Investment Company
Act; taxes; ERISA; disclosure; no material misstatements; insurance; restrictions on liens; locations of businesses and
offices; properties and titles; maintenance of properties; gas imbalances; prepayments; marketing of production; swap
agreements; use of proceeds; solvency; anti-corruption laws and sanctions; and security instruments.
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The Successor Credit Facility also contains certain affirmative and negative covenants, including, without limitation:
delivery of financial statements; notices of material events; existence and conduct of business; payment of obligations;
performance of obligations under the Successor Credit Facility and the other loan documents; operation and
maintenance of properties; maintenance of insurance; maintenance of books and records; compliance with laws and
regulations; compliance with environmental laws and regulations; delivery of reserve reports; delivery of title
information; requirement to grant additional collateral; compliance with ERISA; requirement to maintain commodity
swaps; maintenance of accounts; restrictions on indebtedness; liens; dividends and distributions; repayment of
permitted unsecured debt; amendments to certain agreements; investments; change in the nature of business; leases
(including oil and gas property leases); sale or discount of receivables; mergers; sale of properties; termination of
swap agreements; transactions with affiliates; negative pledges; dividend restrictions; marketing activities; gas
imbalances; take-or-pay or other prepayments; swap agreements and transactions and passive holding company status.

The Successor Credit Facility also contains certain financial covenants, including the maintenance of (i) the ratio of
consolidated first lien debt of VNG and the Guarantors as of the date of determination to EBITDA for the most
recently ended four consecutive fiscal quarter period for which financial statements are available of (a) 4.75 to 1.00 as
of the last day of any fiscal quarter ending from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, (b) 4.50 to 1.00 as of the
last day of any fiscal quarter ending from January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, (c) 4.25 to 1.00 as of the last
day of any fiscal quarter ending from January 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020, and (d) 4.00 to 1.00 as of the last
day of any fiscal quarter ending thereafter; (ii) an asset coverage ratio calculated as PV-9 of proved reserves, including
impact of hedges and strip prices to first lien debt, of not less than 1.25 to 1.00 as tested on each January 1 and July 1
for the period from August 1, 2017 until August 1, 2018; and (iii) a ratio, determined as of the last day of each fiscal
quarter for the four fiscal-quarter period then ending, commencing with the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2017,
of current assets to current liabilities of VNR and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis of not less than 1.00 to 1.00.

The Successor Credit Facility also contains certain events of default, including, without limitation: non-payment;
breaches of representations and warranties; non-compliance with covenants or other agreements; cross-default to
material indebtedness; judgments; change of control; and voluntary and involuntary bankruptcy.

Senior Notes due 2024

On August 1, 2017, the Company issued approximately $80.7 million aggregate principal amount of new 9.0% Senior
Secured Second Lien Notes due 2024 (the “Senior Notes due 2024”) to certain eligible holders of the Predecessor’s
second lien notes (the “Existing Notes”) in satisfaction of their claim of approximately $80.7 million related to the
Existing Notes held by such holders. The Senior Notes due 2024 were issued in accordance with the exemption from
the registration requirements of the Securities Act afforded by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

The obligations under the Senior Notes due 2024 are guaranteed by all of the Company’s subsidiaries (“Second Lien
Guarantors”) subject to limited exceptions, and secured on a second-priority basis by substantially all of the Company’s
and the Second Lien Guarantors’ assets, including, without limitation, liens on the total value of the Company’s and the
Second Lien Guarantors’ oil and gas properties, and pledges of stock of all other direct and indirect subsidiaries of the
Company, subject to certain limited exceptions.

The Senior Notes due 2024 are governed by an Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2017 (as
amended, the “Amended and Restated Indenture”), by and among the Company, certain subsidiary guarantors of the
Company (the “Guarantors”) and Delaware Trust Company, as Trustee (in such capacity, the “Trustee”) and as Collateral
Trustee (in such capacity, the “Collateral Trustee”), which contains affirmative and negative covenants that, among
other things, limit the ability of the Company and the Guarantors to (i) incur, assume or guarantee additional
indebtedness or issue preferred stock; (ii) create liens to secure indebtedness; (iii) make distributions on, purchase or
redeem the Company’s Common Stock or purchase or redeem subordinated indebtedness; (iv) make investments; (v)
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restrict dividends, loans or other asset transfers from the Company’s restricted subsidiaries; (vi) consolidate with or
merge with or into, or sell substantially all of its properties to, another person; (vii) sell or otherwise dispose of assets,
including equity interests in subsidiaries; (viii) enter into transactions with affiliates; or (ix) create unrestricted
subsidiaries. These covenants are subject to important exceptions and qualifications. If the Senior Notes due 2024
achieve an investment grade rating from each of Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Moody’s Investors Service,
Inc., no default or event of default under the Amended and Restated Indenture exists, and the Company delivers to the
Trustee an officers’ certificate certifying such events, many of the foregoing covenants will terminate.

The Amended and Restated Indenture also contains customary events of default, including (i) default for thirty (30)
days in the payment when due of interest on the Senior Notes due 2024; (ii) default in payment when due of principal
of or premium, if any, on the Senior Notes due 2024 at maturity, upon redemption or otherwise; and (iii) certain
events of bankruptcy
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or insolvency with respect to the Company or any restricted subsidiary of the Company that is a significant subsidiary
or any group of restricted subsidiaries of the Company that taken together would constitute a significant subsidiary. If
an event of default occurs and is continuing, the Trustee or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount
of the then outstanding Senior Notes due 2024 may declare all the Senior Notes due 2024 to be due and payable
immediately. If an event of default arises from certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency, with respect to the
Company, any restricted subsidiary of the Company that is a significant subsidiary or any group of restricted
subsidiaries of the Company that, taken together, would constitute a significant subsidiary, all outstanding Senior
Notes due 2024 will become due and payable immediately without further action or notice.

Interest is payable on the Senior Notes due 2024 on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning on February
15, 2018. The Senior Notes due 2024 will mature on February 15, 2024.

At any time prior to February 15, 2020, the Company may on any one or more occasions redeem up to 35% of the
aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes due 2024 issued under the Amended and Restated Indenture, with an
amount of cash not greater than the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings, at a redemption price equal to 109%
of the principal amount of the Senior Notes due 2024, together with accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date; provided that (i) at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes due 2024
originally issued under the Amended and Restated Indenture remain outstanding after such redemption, and (ii) the
redemption occurs within one hundred eighty (180) days of the equity offering.

On or after February 15, 2020, the Senior Notes due 2024 will be redeemable, in whole or in part, at redemption prices
equal to the principal amount multiplied by the percentage set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
the redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period beginning on February 15 of the years indicated
below:

Year Percentage
2020 106.75 %
2021 104.50 %
2022 102.25 %
2023 and thereafter 100.00 %

In addition, at any time prior to February 15, 2020, the Company may on any one or more occasions redeem all or a
part of the Senior Notes due 2024 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus the
Applicable Premium (as defined in the Amended and Restated Indenture) as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to the date of redemption.

As discussed above, the Successor Credit Facility and the Senior Notes due 2024 contain certain affirmative and
negative covenants. If we were to violate any of the covenants under the Successor Credit Facility or the indenture
governing the Senior Notes due 2024, and were unable to obtain a waiver or amendment, it would be considered an
event of default. If we were in default under the Successor Credit Facility or the indenture governing the Senior Notes
due 2024, then the lenders or the noteholders, as applicable, may exercise certain remedies including, among others,
declaring all outstanding indebtedness under the relevant instrument immediately due and payable. This could
adversely affect our operations and our ability to satisfy our obligations as they come due. In the event of a covenant
breach, we will seek to obtain a waiver from our lenders or amend the respective debt agreements and while no
assurances can be made that a waiver will be granted, we believe the long-term global outlook for commodity prices
and our efforts to divest non-core oil and natural gas properties to pay down our outstanding borrowings will be
viewed positively by our lenders.

Letters of Credit
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At March 31, 2018, we had unused irrevocable standby letters of credit of approximately $0.2 million. The letters are
being maintained as security related to the issuance of oil and natural gas well permits to recover potential costs of
repairs, modification, or construction to remedy damages to properties caused by the operator. Borrowing availability
for the letters of credit was provided under our Successor Credit Facility.

Lease Financing Obligations

On October 24, 2014, as part of our acquisition of certain natural gas, oil and NGLs assets in the Piceance Basin, we
entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC as the lead
bank, whereby
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we acquired compressors and related facilities and assumed the related financing obligations (the “Lease Financing
Obligations”). Certain rights, title, interest and obligations under the Lease Financing Obligations have been assigned
to several lenders and are covered by separate assignment agreements, which expire on August 10, 2020 and July 10,
2021. We have the option to purchase the equipment at the end of the lease term for the then current fair market value.
The Lease Financing Obligations also contain an early buyout option whereby the Company may purchase the
equipment for $16.0 million on February 10, 2019. The lease payments related to the equipment are recognized as
principal and interest expense based on a weighted average implicit interest rate of 4.16%.

5. Price Risk Management Activities

We have entered into derivative contracts primarily with counterparties that are also lenders under our Successor
Credit Facility to hedge price risk associated with a portion of our oil, natural gas and NGLs production. While it is
never management’s intention to hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes, conditions
sometimes arise where actual production is less than estimated which has, and could, result in over hedged volumes.
Pricing for these derivative contracts is based on certain market indexes and prices at our primary sales points.

The following tables summarize oil, natural gas, and NGLs commodity derivative contracts in place at March 31,
2018:

Fixed-Price Swaps (NYMEX)

Gas Oil NGLs

Contract Period  MMBtu Weighted Average
Fixed Price Bbls

Weighted
Average
WTI
Price

Gallons

Weighted
Average
Fixed
Price

April 1, 2018 - December 31, 2018 52,093,000 $ 2.89 2,014,950 $ 46.60 42,735,000 $ 0.60
January 1, 2019 - December 31, 2019 52,539,000 $ 2.79 1,858,200 $ 48.50 16,213,742 $ 0.78
January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2020 47,227,500 $ 2.75 1,393,800 $ 49.53 — $ —

Collars

Gas Oil

Contract Period  MMBtu Floor Price
($/MMBtu)

Ceiling
Price
($/MMBtu)

Bbls
Floor
Price
($/Bbl)

Ceiling
Price
($/Bbl)

January 1, 2019 - December 31, 2019 4,125,000 $ 2.60 $ 3.00 575,730 $ 43.81 $ 54.04
January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2020 5,490,000 $ 2.60 $ 3.00 659,340 $ 44.17 $ 55.00
January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021 1,825,000 $ 2.60 $ 3.07 3,409,972 $ 47.50 $ 56.05

Balance Sheet Presentation

Our commodity derivatives are presented on a net basis in “derivative assets” and “derivative liabilities” on the condensed
consolidated balance sheets as governed by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master Agreement
with each of the counterparties. The following table summarizes the gross fair values of our derivative instruments,
presenting the impact of offsetting the derivative assets and liabilities on our condensed consolidated balance sheets
for the periods indicated (in thousands):
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Successor
March 31, 2018

Offsetting Derivative Assets:

Gross
Amounts
of
Recognized
Assets

Gross
Amounts
Offset in the
Condensed Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Net Amounts
Presented in
the
Condensed Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Commodity price derivative contracts  $8,614 $ (8,614 ) $ —
Total derivative instruments  $8,614 $ (8,614 ) $ —

Offsetting Derivative Liabilities:

Gross
Amounts
of
Recognized
Liabilities

Gross
Amounts
Offset in the
Condensed
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Net Amounts
Presented in
the
Condensed
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Commodity price derivative contracts  $(82,344) $ 8,614 $ (73,730 )
Total derivative instruments  $(82,344) $ 8,614 $ (73,730 )

Successor
December 31, 2017

Offsetting Derivative Assets:

Gross
Amounts
of
Recognized
Assets

Gross
Amounts
Offset in the
Condensed
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Net Amounts
Presented in
the
Condensed
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Commodity price derivative contracts  $15,264 $ (13,006 ) $ 2,258
Total derivative instruments  $15,264 $ (13,006 ) $ 2,258

Offsetting Derivative Liabilities:

Gross
Amounts
of
Recognized
Liabilities

Gross
Amounts
Offset in the
Condensed
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Net Amounts
Presented in
the
Condensed
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Commodity price derivative contracts  $(79,701) $ 13,006 $ (66,695 )
Total derivative instruments  $(79,701) $ 13,006 $ (66,695 )

By using derivative instruments to economically hedge exposures to changes in commodity prices and interest rates,
we expose ourselves to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the
terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes us,
which creates credit risk. All of our counterparties were participants in our Successor Credit Facility (see Note 4, “Debt”
for further discussion), which is secured by our oil and natural gas properties; therefore, we were not required to post
any collateral. The maximum amount of loss due to credit risk that we would incur if our counterparties failed
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completely to perform according to the terms of the contracts, based on the gross fair value of financial instruments,
was approximately $8.6 million at March 31, 2018. We minimize the credit risk related to derivative instruments by:
(i) entering into derivative instruments with counterparties that are also lenders in our Successor Credit Facility, and
(ii) monitoring the creditworthiness of our counterparties on an ongoing basis.
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Changes in fair value of our commodity and interest rate derivatives for the periods indicated are as follows (in
thousands):

Successor Predecessor
Three
Months
Ended
March 31,
2018

Five
Months
Ended
December
31, 2017

Seven
Months
Ended
July 31,
2017

Derivative liability at beginning of period, net $(64,437) $(24,894) $ (125 )
Purchases
Net losses on commodity and interest rate derivative contracts (18,585 ) (55,857 ) (24,857 )
Settlements
Cash settlements paid (received) on matured commodity
   derivative contracts 9,292 12,174 (7 )

Cash settlements paid on matured interest rate derivative
   contracts — — 95

Termination of derivative contracts — 4,140 —
Derivative liability at end of period, net $(73,730) $(64,437) $ (24,894 )

6.  Fair Value Measurements

We estimate the fair values of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities under ASC Topic 820 “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures” (“ASC Topic 820”). ASC Topic 820 provides a framework for consistent measurement
of fair value for those assets and liabilities already measured at fair value under other accounting pronouncements.
Certain specific fair value measurements, such as those related to share-based compensation, are not included in the
scope of ASC Topic 820. Primarily, ASC Topic 820 is applicable to assets and liabilities related to financial
instruments, to some long-term investments and liabilities, to initial valuations of assets and liabilities acquired in a
business combination, recognition of asset retirement obligations and to long-lived assets written down to fair value
when they are impaired. ASC Topic 820 applies to assets and liabilities carried at fair value on the condensed
consolidated balance sheets, as well as to supplemental information about the fair values of financial instruments not
carried at fair value.

We have applied the provisions of ASC Topic 820 to assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis,
which includes our commodity and interest rate derivatives contracts, and on a nonrecurring basis, which includes
acquisitions of oil and natural gas properties and other intangible assets and the initial measurement of asset retirement
obligations. ASC Topic 820 provides a definition of fair value and a framework for measuring fair value, as well as
expanding disclosures regarding fair value measurements. The framework requires fair value measurement techniques
to include all significant assumptions that would be made by willing participants in a market transaction.

ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants on the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 provides a hierarchy of fair value
measurements, based on the inputs to the fair value estimation process. It requires disclosure of fair values classified
according to the “levels” described below. The hierarchy is based on the reliability of the inputs used in estimating fair
value and requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value. The framework for fair value measurement assumes that transparent “observable” (Level 1)
inputs generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value and should be used to measure fair value whenever
available. The classification of a fair value measurement is determined based on the lowest level (with Level 3 as the
lowest) of significant input to the fair value estimation process.
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The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:  
Level 1 Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

Level
2

Quoted market prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and
significant value drivers are observable in active markets.
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Level 3

Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value
drivers are unobservable. Level 3 assets and liabilities generally include financial instruments whose value is
determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as
instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation
or for which there is a lack of transparency as to the inputs used.

  As required by ASC Topic 820, financial assets and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their
placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.

As of the Effective Date, the Company adopted fresh-start accounting, which resulted in the Company becoming a
new entity for financial reporting purposes. Upon the adoption of fresh-start accounting, the Company's assets and
liabilities were recorded at their fair values as of the Convenience Date of July 31, 2017.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Financing arrangements. The carrying amounts of our bank borrowings outstanding, including the term loans,
represent their approximate fair value because our current borrowing rates are variable and do not materially differ
from market rates for similar bank borrowings. We consider this fair value estimate as a Level 2 input. As of
March 31, 2018, the carrying value of our Senior Notes due 2024 approximates its fair value. We consider the inputs
to the valuation of our Senior Notes due 2024 to be Level 2.

Derivative instruments. Our commodity derivative instruments consist of fixed-price swaps and collars. We account
for our commodity derivatives and interest rate derivatives at fair value on a recurring basis. We estimate the fair
values of the fixed-price swaps based on published forward commodity price curves for the underlying commodities
as of the date of the estimate. We estimate the option value of the contract floors and ceilings using an option pricing
model which takes into account market volatility, market prices and contract parameters. The discount rate used in the
discounted cash flow projections is based on published LIBOR rates, Eurodollar futures rates and interest swap rates.

Inputs to the pricing models include publicly available prices and forward price curves generated from a compilation
of data gathered from third parties. Management validates the data provided by third parties by understanding the
pricing models used, analyzing pricing data in certain situations and confirming that those securities trade in active
markets. Assumed credit risk adjustments, based on published credit ratings, public bond yield spreads and credit
default swap spreads, are applied to our commodity derivatives and interest rate derivatives.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below (in
thousands):

Successor
March 31, 2018
Fair Value MeasurementsLiabilities
Using Level
2 at Fair Value

Liabilities:
Commodity price derivative contracts $ (73,730 ) $ (73,730 )
Total derivative instruments  $ (73,730 ) $ (73,730 )
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Successor
December 31, 2017
Fair Value MeasurementsAssets/Liabilities
Using Level
2 at Fair Value

Assets:
Commodity price derivative contracts  $ 2,258 $ 2,258
Total derivative instruments  $ 2,258 $ 2,258
Liabilities:
Commodity price derivative contracts $ (66,695 ) $ (66,695 )
Total derivative instruments  $ (66,695 ) $ (66,695 )

During periods of market disruption, including periods of volatile oil and natural gas prices, there may be certain asset
classes that were in active markets with observable data that become illiquid due to changes in the financial
environment. In such cases, some derivative instruments may fall to Level 3 and thus require more subjectivity and
management judgment. Further, rapidly changing commodity and unprecedented credit and equity market conditions
could materially impact the valuation of derivative instruments as reported within our condensed consolidated
financial statements and the period-to-period changes in value could vary significantly. Decreases in value may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition.

Our nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are initially measured at fair value are comprised primarily of assets
acquired in business combinations and asset retirement costs and obligations.  These assets and liabilities are recorded
at fair value when acquired/incurred but not re-measured at fair value in subsequent periods. We classify such initial
measurements as Level 3 since certain significant unobservable inputs are utilized in their determination. A
reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of our asset retirement obligations is presented in Note 7, “Asset
Retirement Obligations,” in accordance with ASC Topic 410-20 “Asset Retirement Obligations.” The fair value of
additions to the asset retirement obligation liability is measured using valuation techniques consistent with the income
approach, converting future cash flows to a single discounted amount.  Inputs to the valuation include: (i) estimated
plug and abandonment cost per well based on our experience; (ii) estimated remaining life per well based on average
reserve life per field; (iii) our credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate; and (iv) the average inflation factor. These inputs
require significant judgments and estimates by the Company’s management at the time of the valuation and are the
most sensitive and subject to change.

The Company periodically reviews oil and natural gas properties for impairment when facts and circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. During the three months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor),
we incurred impairment charges of $14.6 million as oil and natural gas properties with a net cost basis of $73.0
million were written down to $58.4 million which relate to downward revisions of unproved property leasehold
acreage and working interest in certain of our undeveloped leasehold. In order to determine whether the carrying value
of an asset is recoverable, the Company compares net capitalized costs of proved oil and natural gas properties to
estimated undiscounted future net cash flows using management’s expectations of future oil and natural gas prices.
These future price scenarios reflect the Company’s estimation of future price volatility. If the net capitalized cost
exceeds the undiscounted future net cash flows, the Company writes the net cost basis down to the discounted future
net cash flows, which is management's estimate of fair value. Significant inputs used to determine the fair value
include estimates of: (i) reserves; (ii) future operating and development costs; (iii) future commodity prices; and (iv) a
market-based weighted average cost of capital rate. The inputs used by management for the fair value measurements
utilized in this review include significant unobservable inputs, and therefore, the fair value measurements employed
are classified as Level 3 for these types of assets.
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7.  Asset Retirement Obligations

Upon the Company's emergence from bankruptcy on August 1, 2017, as discussed in Note 1, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies,” the Company applied fresh-start accounting. This included adjusting the Asset Retirement
Obligations based on the estimated fair values at the Convenience Date.
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The following provides a roll-forward of our asset retirement obligations (in thousands):
Asset retirement obligation as of January 1, 2017 (Predecessor) $272,436
Liabilities added during the current period 555
Accretion expense 6,795
Retirements (1,161 )
Liabilities related to assets divested (10,107 )
Change in estimate (29 )
Asset retirement obligation at July 31, 2017 (Predecessor) 268,489
Fresh-start adjustment (1) (123,320 )
Asset retirement obligation at July 31, 2017 (Successor) 145,169
Liabilities added during the current period 10,540
Accretion expense 3,975
Liabilities related to assets divested (5,066 )
Retirements (812 )
Change in estimate 3,618
Asset retirement obligation at December 31, 2017 (Successor) 157,424
Liabilities added during the current period 136
Accretion expense 2,401
Retirements (363 )
Asset retirement obligation at March 31, 2018 (Successor) 159,598
Less: current obligations (6,385 )
Long-term asset retirement obligation at March 31, 2018 (Successor) $153,213

(1)As a result of the application of fresh-start accounting, the Successor recorded its asset retirement obligations at fair
value as of the Effective Date. Significant inputs to the valuation include estimates of: (i) plug and abandon costs per
well based on existing regulatory requirements; (ii) remaining life per well; (iii) future inflation factor of 1.8%; and
(iv) a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate of 6.4%.

Inputs to the valuation of additions to the asset retirement obligation liability and certain changes in the estimated fair
value of the liability include: (i) estimated plug and abandonment cost per well based on our experience; (ii) estimated
remaining life per well based on average reserve life per field; (iii) our credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate and (iv)
the average inflation factor. These inputs require significant judgments and estimates by the Company’s management
at the time of the valuation and are sensitive and subject to change. During the five month period ended December 31,
2017 (Successor), we used credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate ranging between 6.2% and 6.4%; and the average
inflation factor of 1.8%. During the three months ended March 31, 2018, our credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate was
6.6% and the average inflation factor was 1.7%.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

Transportation Demand Charges

As of March 31, 2018, we have contracts that provide firm transportation capacity on pipeline systems. The remaining
terms on these contracts range from one month to two years and require us to pay transportation demand charges
regardless of the amount of pipeline capacity we utilize.

The values in the table below represent gross future minimum transportation demand charges we are obligated to pay
as of March 31, 2018. However, our financial statements will reflect our proportionate share of the charges based on
our working interest and net revenue interest, which will vary from property to property.
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March 31,
2018
(in
thousands)

April 1, 2018 - December 31, 2018 $ 662
2019 821
2020 410
Total $ 1,893

Lease Commitments

Rent expense for our office leases was $0.5 million for each of the three months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor)
and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor). The rent expense relates to the lease of our office space in
Houston, Texas as well as office leases in our other operating areas. As of March 31, 2018, the minimum contractual
obligations were approximately $10.2 million in the aggregate. Our policy is to amortize the total payments under the
lease agreement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

March 31,
2018
(in
thousands)

April 1, 2018 - December 31, 2018 $ 976
2019 1,187
2020 1,135
2021 1,170
2022 1,205
Thereafter 4,503
Total $ 10,176

Development Commitments

We have commitments to third-party operators under joint operating agreements relating to the drilling and
completion of oil and natural gas wells. As of March 31, 2018, total estimated costs to be spent in 2018 is
approximately $36.7 million of which $22.6 million relates primarily to drilling and completion commitments in the
Arkoma Basin.

Legal Proceedings

There have been no material developments with respect to the legal proceedings described in our 2017 Annual Report
since the filing thereof.

We are also defendants in certain legal proceedings arising in the normal course of our business. Management does
not believe that it is probable that the outcome of these actions will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
condensed consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flow, although the ultimate outcome and
impact of such legal proceedings on the Company cannot be predicted with certainty. Furthermore, our insurance may
not be adequate to cover all liabilities that may arise out of claims brought against us. If one or more negative
outcomes were to occur relative to these matters, the aggregate impact to our financial position, results of operations
or cash flow could be material. As of March 31, 2018, we have not reserved any loss contingencies related to our legal
proceedings in our financial statements because our management believes a loss arising from these proceedings is not
probable and not reasonably estimable.
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In addition, we are not aware of any legal or governmental proceedings against us, or contemplated to be brought
against us, under applicable environmental laws, that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
condensed consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flow. 

9.  Stockholders’ Equity

Cancellation of Units and Issuance of Common Stock

As previously discussed, all outstanding preferred units issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective
Date were cancelled and the holders thereof received their pro rata shares of (i) 3% (subject to dilution) of outstanding
shares of
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Common Stock and (ii) Preferred Unit Warrants, in full and final satisfaction of their interests. Further, all common
equity of the Predecessor issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Date were cancelled and the
holders of the common equity received Common Unit Warrants, in full and final satisfaction of their interests. Please
see further discussion below regarding the issuance of new warrants. On the Effective Date, the Company issued 20.1
million shares of Common Stock, $0.001 par value, in accordance with the Final Plan.

Warrant Agreement

On the Effective Date, the Company entered into a warrant agreement (the “Warrant Agreement”) with American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as warrant agent, pursuant to which the Company issued: (i) to electing holders of
the Predecessor’s (A) 7.875% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units (“Series A Preferred Units”),
(B) 7.625% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units (“Series B Preferred Units”), and (C) 7.75%
Series C Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units (“Series C Preferred Units” and, together with the Series A
Preferred Units and Series B Preferred Units, the “Preferred Units”), three and a half year warrants (the “Preferred Unit
Warrants”), which will be exercisable to purchase up to 621,649 shares of Common Stock as of the Effective Date; and
(ii) to electing holders of the Predecessor’s common units representing limited liability company interests, three and a
half year warrants (the “Common Unit Warrants” and, together with the Preferred Unit Warrants, the “Warrants”) which
will be exercisable to purchase up to 640,876 shares of Common Stock as of the Effective Date. The expiration date of
the Warrants is February 1, 2021. The strike price for the Preferred Unit New Warrants is $44.25, and the strike price
for the Common Unit New Warrants is $61.45.

Management Incentive Plan

On August 22, 2017, the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) approved, upon the recommendation of the
Company’s Compensation Committee (“Committee”), the Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. 2017 Management
Incentive Plan (the “MIP”), which will assist the Company in attracting, motivating and retaining key personnel and will
align the interests of participants with those of stockholders.

The maximum number of shares of common shares available for issuance under the MIP is 2,233,333 shares.

The MIP is administered by the Committee or, in certain instances, its designee. Employees, directors, and consultants
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive awards of stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock
units (“RSUs”) or other stock-based awards at the Committee or its designee's discretion.

The Board may amend, modify, suspend, or terminate the MIP in its discretion; however, no amendment,
modification, suspension or termination may materially and adversely affect any award previously granted without the
consent of the participant or the permitted transferee of the award. No grant will be made under the 2017 Plan more
than 10 years after its effective date.

Earnings Per Share/Unit

Basic earnings per share/unit is computed by dividing net earnings attributable to stockholders/unitholders by the
weighted average number of shares/units outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share/unit is computed
by adjusting the average number of shares/units outstanding for the dilutive effect, if any, of potential common
shares/units. The Company uses the treasury stock method to determine the dilutive effect.

The diluted earnings per share calculation for the three months ended March 31, 2018 excluded approximately 1.3
million warrants and 173,629 RSUs that were antidilutive as we were in a loss position. The diluted earnings per unit
calculation for the three months ended March 31, 2017 excluded approximately 13.5 million phantom units due to
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their antidilutive effect as we were in a loss position.

10. Share-Based Compensation

Effect of Emergence from Bankruptcy on Unit-Based Compensation

Pursuant to the Final Plan, all unvested equity grants under the Predecessor’s Long-Term Incentive Plan (the
“Predecessor Incentive Plan”) that were outstanding immediately before the Effective Date were canceled and of no
further force or effect as of the Effective Date. In addition, on the Effective Date, the Predecessor’s Incentive Plan was
canceled and extinguished, and participants in the Predecessor’s Incentive Plan received no payment or other
distribution on account of the Incentive Plan.
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Management Incentive Plan

As discussed in Note 9, “Stockholders’ Equity,” on August 22, 2017, the Company’s Board approved the MIP, which will
assist the Company in attracting, motivating and retaining key personnel and will align the interests of participants
with those of stockholders.

MIP Restricted Stock Units

The MIP allows for the issuance of restricted stock unit awards that generally may not be sold or otherwise transferred
until certain restrictions have lapsed. The compensation cost related to these awards is based on the grant date fair
value and is expensed over the requisite service period.

In January 2018, the Company granted 78,190 time-based restricted stock unit awards to executives and certain
management-level employees with a grant-date fair value of $19.50 per unit and a vesting period of three years. Also,
in March 2018, a director was granted 5,893 time-based restricted stock unit awards with a grant-date fair value of
$11.99 per unit of which 1,474 units vested immediately and the remaining 4,419 units will vest over a period of three
years.

The following table summarizes our time-based RSUs as of March 31, 2018:
Time-Based
Restricted
Stock Units

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Value

Non-vested at December 31, 2017 7,500 $ 19.50
Granted 84,083 $ 18.97
Vested (1,474 ) $ 11.99
Non-vested at March 31, 2018 90,109 $ 19.13

We expense time-based RSUs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. As of March 31, 2018, the total
remaining unearned compensation related to non-vested time-based RSUs was $1.6 million, which will be amortized
over the weighted-average remaining service period of 2.6 years.

In January 2018, the Company granted total shareholder return (“TSR”) performance restricted stock unit awards to
executives and certain management-level employees. A total of 191,390 TSR performance RSUs would vest assuming
achievement of the goals at target level. Awards of TSR performance RSUs will be earned based on a predefined
performance criteria determined by comparing our total shareholder return during a three-year period to the respective
total shareholder returns of companies in a performance peer group. Based upon our ranking in the performance peer
group, a recipient of TSR performance RSUs may earn a total award ranging from 0% to 200% of the initial grant.
The TSR modifier is considered a market condition. The awards are also subject to certain other performance
conditions which were considered in calculating the grant date fair value.

We estimate the fair value of TSR Performance RSUs at the grant date using a Monte Carlo simulation. Assumptions
used in the Monte Carlo simulation were as follows:

2018 Grant
Closing price of our common stock on grant date $19.70
Volatility 42.87%
Risk-free interest rate 2.13%
Fair value of unit $25.15
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We recognize compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. As of March 31, 2018,
total remaining unearned compensation related to TSR performance RSUs was $4.5 million, which will be amortized
over the weighted-average remaining service period of 2.8 years.

Share-based compensation for the predecessor and successor periods are not comparable. Our condensed consolidated
statements of operations reflect non-cash compensation related to our MIP of $0.5 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2018 (Successor) and non-cash compensation related to the Predecessor Incentive Plan of $2.6 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor).
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11.  Income Taxes

For the three months ended March 31, 2018, we recorded no income tax expense or benefit. The difference between
our effective tax rate and the federal statutory income tax rate of 21% is primarily due to the effect of changes in the
Company’s valuation allowance. During the three months ended March 31, 2018, the Company has continued to record
a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax position. A valuation allowance has been recorded as management
does not believe that it is more-likely-than-not that its deferred tax assets will be realized.

On December 22, 2017, President Trump signed into law the Tax Act that significantly reforms the U.S. tax code. Our
accounting for the Tax Act is incomplete. However, as noted in our 2017 Annual Report, at December 31, 2017 we
were able to reasonably estimate certain effects and, therefore, recorded provisional adjustments associated with the
reduction of U.S. federal corporate tax rate, changes in net operating loss utilization, and immediate expensing of
certain capital investments. We have not made any additional measurement-period adjustments related to these items
during the quarter. We are continuing to gather additional information to complete our accounting for these items and
expect to complete our accounting within the prescribed measurement period.

12.  Subsequent Events

In April and May 2018, we entered into separate purchase and sale agreements for the sale of certain of our oil and
natural gas properties in the Permian basin, the Green River basin and in Mississippi for an aggregate selling price of
$60.0 million, subject to customary post-closing adjustments to be determined. For clarity, Vanguard’s interest in the
Pinedale field is not included in the sale of properties in the Green River basin. Proceeds from the sales are intended to
be used to reduce borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

Item 2.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion is intended to assist in understanding our results of operations for the three months ended
March 31, 2018 (Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), and should be read in
conjunction with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and with the condensed consolidated financial statements, notes and management's
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations included in our 2017 Annual Report. As
described below, however, such prior financial statements may not be comparable to our interim financial statements
due to the adoption of fresh-start accounting.

As discussed in Note 1 of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1
of this report, the Company applied fresh-start accounting upon emergence from bankruptcy on August 1, 2017, using
a Convenience Date of July 31, 2017, at which time it became a new entity for financial reporting purposes.
References to the Successor relate to the Company on and subsequent to the Effective Date. References to Predecessor
refer to the Company prior to the Effective Date.

Statements in this discussion may be forward-looking. These forward-looking statements involve risks and
uncertainties, including those discussed below, which could cause actual results to differ from those expressed. For
more information, see “Forward-Looking Statements.”

Overview

We are an exploration and production company engaged in the production and development of oil and natural gas
properties in the United States. The Company is currently focused on adding value by efficiently operating our

Edgar Filing: Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. - Form 10-Q

55



producing assets and, in certain areas, applying modern drilling and completion technologies in order to fully assess
and realize potential development upside. Our primary business objective is to increase shareholder value by growing
reserves, production and cash flow in a capital efficient manner. Through our operating subsidiaries, as of March 31,
2018, we own properties and oil and natural gas reserves primarily located in nine operating basins:

•the Green River Basin in Wyoming;

•the Piceance Basin in Colorado;

•the Permian Basin in West Texas and New Mexico;

27

Edgar Filing: Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. - Form 10-Q

56



•the Arkoma Basin in Arkansas and Oklahoma;

•the Gulf Coast Basin in Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi and Alabama;

•the Big Horn Basin in Wyoming and Montana;

•the Anadarko Basin in Oklahoma and North Texas;

•the Wind River Basin in Wyoming; and

•the Powder River Basin in Wyoming.

As of March 31, 2018, based on internal reserve estimates, our total estimated proved reserves were 1,771.8 Bcfe, of
which approximately 75% were natural gas reserves, 13% were oil reserves and 12% were NGLs reserves. Of these
total estimated proved reserves, approximately 69%, or 1,220.6 Bcfe, were classified as proved developed. Also, at
March 31, 2018, we owned working interests in 11,371 gross (3,936 net) productive wells. Our operated wells
accounted for approximately 44% of our total estimated proved reserves at March 31, 2018. Our average net daily
production for the three months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor), the five months ended December 31, 2017
(Successor) and the seven months ended July 31, 2017 (Predecessor) was 368 MMcfe/day, 364 MMcfe/day
and 381 MMcfe/day, respectively.

We develop an annual capital expenditures budget which is reviewed and approved by our Board of Directors (the
“Board”) and revised throughout the year as circumstances warrant. We take into consideration our projected operating
cash flow, commodity prices for oil and natural gas and externally available sources of financing, such as bank debt,
asset divestitures, issuance of debt and equity securities, and strategic joint ventures, when establishing our capital
expenditure budget.
Our revenues and operating cash flow depend on the successful development of our inventory of capital projects with
available capital, the volume and timing of our production, as well as commodity prices for oil and natural gas. Such
pricing factors are largely beyond our control; however, we have historically employed commodity hedging
techniques in an attempt to minimize the volatility of short term commodity price fluctuations on our earnings and
operating cash flow.

Asset Divestitures

In April and May 2018, we entered into separate purchase and sale agreements for the sale of certain of our oil and
natural gas properties in the Permian basin, the Green River basin and in Mississippi for an aggregate selling price of
$60.0 million, subject to customary post-closing adjustments to be determined. For clarity, Vanguard’s interest in the
Pinedale field is not included in the sale of properties in the Green River basin. Proceeds from the sales are intended to
be used to reduce borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

Emergence from Voluntary Reorganization under Chapter 11 Proceedings

On February 1, 2017, the Predecessor and certain of its subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions (collectively, the
“Bankruptcy Petitions” and, the cases commenced thereby, the “Chapter 11 Cases”) for relief under Chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas. The Chapter
11 Cases were administered under the caption “In re Vanguard Natural Resources, LLC, et al.”

Also upon emergence from bankruptcy, we made multiple changes to our accounting policies including the
application of fresh-start accounting. Please read Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Edgar Filing: Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. - Form 10-Q

57



included under Part II, Item 8 of our 2017 Annual Report for a discussion of the accounting policy changes.
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Capital Development

Total capital expenditures were approximately $42.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2018. We
currently anticipate a total capital expenditures budget ranging from $140.0 million to $145.0 million for the full year
of 2018, down from our initial 2018 guidance of $160.0 million. This is primarily due to a shift in our drilling
program favoring increased horizontal drilling and a decrease in vertical drilling activity in the Green River Basin at
the Pinedale Field. We now expect to spend between $70.0 million and $80.0 million for the full year of 2018, down
from our previously estimated $90.0 million to $95.0 million, at the Pinedale Field. We are participating with Ultra
Petroleum Corporation (“Ultra”) as a non-operated partner in testing the flank of the Pinedale Field with horizontal
drilling and expect to spend $50.0 million to $60.0 million of our remaining capital expenditures budget for the year in
this field. As of March 31, 2018, Ultra had drilled and completed two horizontal wells targeting one of our identified
benches in the Lower Lance formation. The production from both wells are exceeding our budget case assumptions.
Ultra is expected to drill an additional 15 to 20 horizontal wells in 2018, in which we plan to participate.

In the Piceance Basin, our operated drilling and completion program is continuing as planned at the Mamm Creek
Field where we expect to spend between $10.0 million and $15.0 million during the remainder of 2018. We have
drilled 14 vertical gas wells and are in the process of completing these wells. In the Arkoma Basin we are on track to
spend approximately $20.0 million of our remaining 2018 capital budget where we will be participating as a
non-operated partner with Newfield Exploration Company in a one rig program, drilling and completing horizontal
Woodford wells. We are also participating as a non-operated partner with BP America, Inc. in two additional wells
that will be completed in the second quarter. The balance of our remaining drilling and completion capital will be
spent on additional drilling, completion and production uplift projects in the Permian, Big Horn, and Powder River
Basins. During the three months ended March 31, 2018, we drilled 20 gross (19.5 net) operated wells and completed
seven gross (6.6 net) operated wells. In addition, we participated in the drilling of 91 gross (10.8 net) non-operated
wells and in the completion of 59 gross (7.6 net) non-operated wells.
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Results of Operations

As previously discussed, in addition to adopting fresh-start accounting, the Successor also adopted the successful
efforts method of accounting as of July 31, 2017. Prior to July 31, 2017, the Predecessor used the full-cost method of
accounting. Further, in conjunction with the application of fresh-start accounting, we adopted ASC Topic 606. The
results of operations of the Successor and the Predecessor are not comparable. We believe however, that production
volumes, oil, natural gas and NGLs revenues, lease operating expenses and production and other taxes are generally
comparable.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2018 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 

The table included below sets forth financial and operating data for the periods indicated (in thousands).
Successor Predecessor (a)
Three
Months Three Months

Ended Ended
March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

Revenues:
Oil sales $46,111 $ 44,630
Natural gas sales 55,267 57,462
NGLs sales 21,897 16,664
Oil, natural gas and NGLs sales 123,275 118,756
Net gains (losses) on commodity derivative contracts (18,585 ) 7
Total revenues and gains (losses) on derivative contracts $104,690 $ 118,763
Costs and expenses:
Production:
Lease operating expenses 30,995 38,481
Transportation, gathering, processing and compression 11,502 —
Production and other taxes 9,781 10,065
Depreciation, depletion, amortization, and accretion 40,039 25,729
Impairment of oil and natural gas properties 14,601 —
Exploration expense 1,316 —
Selling, general and administrative expenses 12,240 7,666
Non-cash compensation 496 2,629
Total costs and expenses $120,970 $ 84,570
Other income (expense):
Interest expense $(14,753 ) $ (16,440 )
Net gains on interest rate derivative contracts — 30
Other 149 55
Reorganization items (1,707 ) (26,746 )

(a)
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we divested certain oil and natural gas properties and related
assets. As such, there are no operating results from these properties included in our operating results from the
closing date of the divestitures forward.

Revenues

Oil, natural gas and NGLs sales were $123.3 million and $118.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018
(Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), respectively. The key oil, natural gas and
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NGLs revenue measurements were as follows:
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Successor Predecessor(b)
Three
Months Three Months

Ended Ended
March
31, 2018

March 31,
2017

Average realized prices, excluding hedges:
Oil (Price/Bbl) $ 55.30 $ 45.01
Natural Gas (Price/Mcf)(a) $ 2.36 $ 2.43
NGLs (Price/Bbl)(a) $ 27.91 $ 19.88
Average realized prices, including hedges(c):
Oil (Price/Bbl) $ 41.66 $ 45.02
Natural Gas (Price/Mcf) $ 2.63 $ 2.43
NGLs (Price/Bbl) $ 22.78 $ 19.88
Average NYMEX prices:
Oil (Price/Bbl) $ 62.89 $ 51.87
Natural Gas (Price/Mcf) $ 2.98 $ 3.30
Total production volumes:
Oil (MBbls) 834 992
Natural Gas (MMcf) 23,371 23,659
NGLs (MBbls) 785 838
Combined (MMcfe) 33,081 34,638
Average daily production volumes:
Oil (Bbls/day) 9,266 11,017
Natural Gas (Mcf/day) 259,674 262,881
NGLs (Bbls/day) 8,717 9,314
Combined (Mcfe/day) 367,568 384,870

(a)

In accordance with the adoption of ASC Topic 606, the average realized natural gas and NGLs prices for the three
months ended March 31, 2018 exclude gathering, transportation, and processing fees of $11.5 million related to
certain of our natural gas and NGLs marketing and processing agreements that were reclassified and presented as
Transportation, gathering, processing, and compression expense in our condensed consolidated statements of
operations. As such, our average realized prices are not comparable with the prior period. If our natural gas and
NGLs revenues are shown net of these fees, the average realized natural gas price excluding hedges would be $2.00
per Mcf and the average NGLs price excluding hedges would be $24.13 per Bbl for the three months ended March
31, 2018.

(b)
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we divested certain oil and natural gas properties and related
assets. As such, there are no operating results from these properties included in our operating results from the
closing date of the divestitures forward.

(c)
Excludes the premiums paid, whether at inception or deferred, for derivative contracts that settled during the period
and the fair value of derivative contracts acquired as part of prior period business combinations that apply to
contracts settled during the period.

The overall increase in oil and NGLs sales during three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to the same period in
2017 was due in part to the increase in the average realized oil prices, excluding hedges. The increase in average
realized oil price is primarily due to a higher average NYMEX crude oil price, which increased 21.2%,
from $51.87 per Bbl in the first quarter of 2017 (Predecessor) to $62.89 per Bbl in the first quarter of 2018
(Successor). As discussed above, the adoption of ASC Topic 606 also increased natural gas and NGLs revenue
by $11.5 million during the Successor period due to the reclassification of gathering, transportation, and processing
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fees. Refer to Note 3 of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item I of
this Quarterly Report for further details.

The increase in sales due to higher average realized oil price and the change in presentation was partially offset by a
decrease in average realized natural gas price, primarily due to a lower average NYMEX natural gas price, which
decreased 9.7%, from $3.30 per Mcf in the first quarter of 2017 (Predecessor) to $2.98 per Mcf in the first
quarter of 2018 (Successor), as well as an overall decrease in average daily production which decreased to
approximately 368 MMcfe/day for the three months
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ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) from approximately 385 MMcfe/day for the three months ended March 31, 2017
(Predecessor). The decrease in average daily production was primarily due to divestitures completed during 2017.

On an Mcfe basis, crude oil, natural gas and NGLs accounted for 15%, 71% and 14%, respectively, of our production
during the three months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) compared to 17%, 68% and 15%, respectively, of our
production during the same period in 2017 (Predecessor).

Hedging and Price Risk Management Activities

We recognized a net loss on commodity derivative contracts of $18.6 million and a net gain of $0.01 million, during
the three months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor),
respectively. Our hedging program is intended to mitigate the volatility in our operating cash flow. Depending on the
type of derivative contract used, hedging generally achieves this by the counterparty paying us when commodity
prices are below the hedged price and we pay the counterparty when commodity prices are above the hedged price. In
either case, the impact on our operating cash flow is approximately the same. However, because our hedges are
currently not designated as cash flow hedges, there can be a significant amount of volatility in our earnings when we
record the change in the fair value of all of our derivative contracts. As commodity prices fluctuate, the fair value of
those contracts will fluctuate and the impact is reflected in our condensed consolidated statement of operations in the
net gains or losses on commodity derivative contracts line item. However, these fair value changes that are reflected in
the condensed consolidated statement of operations reflect the value of the derivative contracts to be settled in the
future and do not take into consideration the value of the underlying commodity. If the fair value of the derivative
contract goes down, it means that the value of the commodity being hedged has gone up, and the net impact to our
cash flow when the contract settles and the commodity is sold in the market will be approximately the same.
Conversely, if the fair value of the derivative contract goes up, it means the value of the commodity being hedged has
gone down and again the net impact to our operating cash flow when the contract settles and the commodity is sold in
the market will be approximately the same for the quantities hedged.

Costs and Expenses

Lease operating expenses include expenses such as labor, field office, vehicle, supervision, maintenance, tools and
supplies and other customary charges. Lease operating expenses were $31.0 million and $38.5 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), respectively.
The decrease in lease operating expenses is primarily due to lower production volumes as a result of decreased
operational activity and divestitures completed in 2017. In addition, overall spending during the three months ended
March 31, 2018 (Successor) further decreased as compared to the same period in 2017 (Predecessor) as a result of our
continued focus on cost efficiency measures.

Transportation, gathering, processing and compression fees represent third-party costs related to certain of our natural
gas and NGLs marketing and processing agreements. These expenses increased by $11.5 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) due to the adoption of ASC Topic 606 in conjunction with fresh-start accounting.
In the Predecessor period, these costs were included in the net proceeds received from processing; however, natural
gas and NGLs revenues and related marketing and processing costs are recognized on a gross basis effective August 1,
2017. Refer to Note 3 of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item
1of this Quarterly Report for further details.

Production and other taxes include severance, ad valorem and other taxes. Severance taxes are a function of volumes
and revenues generated from production. Ad valorem taxes vary by state or county and are based on the value of our
reserves. As a percentage of wellhead revenues, production and other taxes was 7.9% and 8.5% for the three months
ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), respectively. The
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percentage was lower during the current period primarily due to higher natural gas and NGLs revenues as they were
presented gross of gathering, transportation, and processing fees of $11.5 million related to certain of our natural gas
and NGLs marketing and processing agreements with the adoption of ASC Topic 606. Natural gas and NGLs
revenues for the prior period were presented net of these fees. We record and remit production taxes based on net
proceeds received from processing related to these contracts. When using net proceeds in the calculation, the effective
tax rate for the Successor period is 8.7%.

Depreciation, depletion, amortization, and accretion expense was $40.0 million and $25.7 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), respectively. The
increase in depreciation, depletion, amortization, and accretion expense is due to a higher amortization base as a result
of the application of fresh-start accounting which led to a corresponding increase in the depletion rate per equivalent
unit of production for the Successor period.
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We adjust our depletion rate on oil and natural gas properties each quarter for significant changes in our estimates of
oil and natural gas reserves and costs. Thus, our depletion rate could change significantly in the future. Depletion
expense is not comparable between Successor and Predecessor periods as a result of our implementation of fresh-start
accounting upon emergence from bankruptcy, whereupon the carrying value of our proved oil and gas properties on
our balance sheet was recorded at fair value. Also upon emergence, we changed our method of accounting for oil and
gas exploration and development activities from the full-cost method to the successful-efforts method of accounting.

An impairment of oil and natural gas properties of $14.6 million was recognized during three months ended March 31,
2018 (Successor). The impairment charge relates to downward revisions in our unproved property leasehold acreage
and working interest in certain of our undeveloped leasehold.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (excluding non-cash compensation) include the costs of our employees,
related benefits, office leases, professional fees and other costs not directly associated with field operations. During
the three months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor),
selling, general and administrative expenses were $12.2 million and $7.7 million, respectively. The increase is
primarily due to severance payments of $2.3 million and higher than expected professional and legal fees during the
Successor period. Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2017 were impacted by costs incurred in connection
with the Chapter 11 Cases, which are primarily included in “Reorganization Items” on our Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

In addition, we incurred non-cash compensation expense of $0.5 million and $2.6 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2018 (Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), respectively. The decrease as
compared to the same period in 2017 is primarily due to cancellation of awards granted under the Predecessor
Incentive Plan as of the Effective Date.

Other Income and Expense

Interest expense was $14.8 million and $16.4 million during the three months ended March 31, 2018 (Successor) and
the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), respectively. The Successor has lower interest expense due to
lower debt outstanding.

Reorganization Items

We incurred reorganization expenses of $1.7 million and $26.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018
(Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), respectively. Reorganization items include
expenses, gains and losses that are the result of the reorganization and restructuring of the business. Professional fees
included in reorganization items represent professional fees for post-petition expenses. During the three months ended
March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), deferred financing costs and unamortized discounts related to the Senior Notes were
also included in reorganization items as these debt instruments were impacted by the Chapter 11 Cases.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States (“GAAP”) requires management to select and apply accounting policies that best provide the framework to report
our results of operations and financial position. The selection and application of those policies requires management to
make difficult subjective or complex judgments concerning reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. As a result,
there exists the likelihood that materially different amounts would be reported under different conditions or using
different assumptions.
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As of March 31, 2018, our critical accounting policies discussed in Note 1 of the Notes to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part 1, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report are consistent with those
discussed in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part II, Item 8 of our 2017
Annual Report.   

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
The most significant estimates pertain to proved oil, natural gas and NGLs reserves and related future cash flows, the
fair value of derivative contracts and asset retirement obligations, accrued oil, natural gas and NGLs revenues and
expenses, as well as
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estimates of expenses related to depreciation, depletion, amortization, and accretion expense, income taxes, and
non-cash compensation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Historically, we have obtained financing through proceeds from bank borrowings, cash flow from operations and from
the public equity and debt markets to provide us with the capital resources and liquidity necessary to operate our
business. To date, the primary use of capital has been for the development of oil and natural gas properties. Our future
success in growing reserves, production and cash flow will be highly dependent on the capital resources available to
us and our success in drilling for additional reserves. We expect to fund our capital expenditures with cash flow from
operations. For the remainder of 2018, we expect our primary funding sources to be cash flows generated by operating
activities, available borrowing capacity under the Successor Credit Facility and/or proceeds from the divestiture of
assets.

The borrowing base under the Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 1, 2017 (the
“Successor Credit Facility”) is subject to adjustments from time to time but not less than on a semi-annual basis based
on the projected discounted present value of estimated future net cash flows (as determined by the lenders’ petroleum
engineers utilizing the lenders’ internal projection of future oil, natural gas and NGLs prices) from our proved oil,
natural gas and NGLs reserves. The next borrowing base redetermination is scheduled for August of 2018. Should we
experience a decline in oil and natural gas prices or basis differentials widen significantly in 2018, we may, among
other things, be unable to maintain or increase our borrowing capacity, or be required to repay current or future
indebtedness.

The Successor Credit Facility and the indenture governing the new 9.0% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 2024
(the “Senior Notes due 2024”) also contain certain other affirmative and negative covenants. If we were to violate any of
the covenants under the Successor Credit Facility or the indenture governing the Senior Notes due 2024, and were
unable to obtain a waiver or amendment, it would be considered an event of default. If we were in default under the
Successor Credit Facility or the indenture governing the Senior Notes due 2024, then the lenders or the noteholders, as
applicable, may exercise certain remedies including, among others, declaring all outstanding indebtedness under the
relevant instrument immediately due and payable. This could adversely affect our operations and our ability to satisfy
our obligations as they come due. In the event of a covenant breach, we will seek to obtain a waiver from our lenders
or amend the respective debt agreements, and while no assurances can be made that a waiver will be granted, we
believe the long-term global outlook for commodity prices and our efforts to divest non-core oil and natural gas
properties to pay down our outstanding borrowings will be viewed positively by our lenders.

Statements of Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our primary sources and uses of cash for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and
2017 (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor
Three
Months

Three
Months

Ended Ended
March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

Net cash provided by operating activities $36,249 $ 51,174
Net cash used in by investing activities $(44,115) $ (20,620 )
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Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $13,236 $ (21,569 )

Cash Flow from Operations

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately $36.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018
(Successor) compared to $51.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor). Changes in working
capital increased total cash flows by $3.7 million and $11.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018
(Successor) and the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor), respectively. Contributing to the increase in
working capital during the first quarter of 2018 was a $13.9 million decrease in accounts receivable related to the
timing of receipts from production, offset by a $9.5 million decrease in accounts payable, oil and natural gas revenue
payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities that resulted primarily from the timing effects of payments.
During the first quarter of 2017, the increase in working capital resulted from a $6.8 million decrease in accounts
receivable related to the timing of receipts from production and a $6.0
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million decrease in other assets related to prepaid drilling costs actually spent during the period. The increase was
offset by a $1.8 million net decrease in accounts payable, oil and natural gas revenue payable and accrued expenses
and other current liabilities that resulted primarily from the timing effects of payments.

Our cash flow from operations is subject to many variables, the most significant of which is the volatility of oil,
natural gas and NGLs prices. Oil, natural gas and NGLs prices are determined primarily by prevailing market
conditions, which are dependent on regional and worldwide economic activity, weather, and other factors beyond our
control. Future cash flow from operations will depend on our ability to maintain and increase production through our
drilling program, as well as the prices received for production. We enter into derivative contracts to reduce the impact
of commodity price volatility on operations. We primarily use fixed-price swaps, collars, basis swap contracts and
other hedge option contracts to hedge oil and natural gas prices. See Note 5 of the Notes to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements, included under Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report and Part I, Item
3—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Commodity Price Risk, for further discussion.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $44.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018
(Successor) compared to approximately $20.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor). Net
cash used in investing activities during the first three months of 2018 (Successor) primarily included $23.3 million for
the drilling and development of oil and natural gas properties and $20.8 million for deposits and prepayments related
to the drilling and development of oil and natural gas properties. During the first three months of 2017 (Predecessor)
we spent approximately $13.7 million for the drilling and development of oil and natural gas properties and $7.9
million for deposits and prepayments related to the drilling and development of oil and natural gas properties.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was approximately $13.2 million for the for the three months ended March
31, 2018 (Successor) compared to net cash used in financing activities of approximately $21.6 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor). Net cash provided by financing activities during the three months ended
March 31, 2018 (Successor) included proceeds from our revolving credit facility of $48.0 million, partially offset by
repayments of our revolving credit facility and term loan of $34.6 million. Net cash used in financing activities during
the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor) included $21.5 million in repayments of our long-term debt.

Debt and Credit Facilities

Successor Credit Facility

On the Effective Date, VNG, as borrower, entered into the Successor Credit Facility, by and among VNG as borrower,
Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent (the “Administrative Agent”) and Issuing Bank, and the lenders party thereto.
Pursuant to the Successor Credit Facility, the lenders party thereto agreed to provide VNG with an $850.0 million exit
senior secured reserve-based revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Loan”). The initial borrowing base available under
the Successor Credit Facility as of the Effective Date was $850.0 million and the aggregate principal amount of
Revolving Loans outstanding under the Successor Credit Facility as of the Effective Date was $730.0 million. The
Successor Credit Facility also includes an additional $125.0 million senior secured term loan (the “Term Loan”). On
December 21, 2017, the borrowing base was reduced to $825.0 million following the completion of the sale of our
properties in the Williston basin.

At March 31, 2018, there were $715.0 million of outstanding borrowings and $109.8 million of borrowing capacity
under the Successor Credit Facility, after reflecting a $0.2 million reduction in availability for letters of credit
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(discussed below).

Senior Notes due 2024

On August 1, 2017, the Company issued approximately $80.7 million aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes
due 2024 to certain eligible holders of the Predecessor’s second lien notes (the “Existing Notes”) in satisfaction of their
claim of approximately $80.7 million related to the Existing Notes held by such holders. The Senior Notes due 2024
were issued in accordance with the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act afforded by
Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.
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Letters of Credit

At March 31, 2018, we had unused irrevocable standby letters of credit of approximately $0.2 million. The letters are
being maintained as security related to the issuance of oil and natural gas well permits to recover potential costs of
repairs, modification, or construction to remedy damages to properties caused by the operator. Borrowing availability
for the letters of credit was provided under our Successor Credit Facility. The fair value of these letters of credit
approximates contract values based on the nature of the fee arrangements with marketing counterparties.

Lease Financing Obligations

On October 24, 2014, as part of our acquisition of certain natural gas, oil and NGLs assets in the Piceance Basin, we
entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC., as the lead
bank, whereby we acquired compressors and related facilities and assumed the related financing obligations (the “Lease
Financing Obligations”). Certain rights, title, interest and obligations under the Lease Financing Obligations have been
assigned to several lenders and are covered by separate assignment agreements, which expire on August 10, 2020 and
July 10, 2021. We have the option to purchase the equipment at the end of the lease term for the then current fair
market value. The Lease Financing Obligations also contain an early buyout option whereby the Company may
purchase the equipment for $16.0 million on February 10, 2019. The lease payments related to the equipment are
recognized as principal and interest expense based on a weighted average implicit interest rate of 4.16%.

Please refer to Note 4 of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item
1of this Quarterly Report for further information regarding our debt.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2018, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, an
effect on our financial position or results of operations.

Contractual Obligations

A summary of our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2018 is provided in the following table (in thousands):

Payments Due by Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 After 2022 Total

Management base salaries $1,094 $1,305 $1,305 $— $— $— $3,704
Asset retirement obligations (1) 5,297 4,355 4,573 4,801 5,041 129,146 153,213
Derivative liabilities 43,478 25,395 13,256 215 — — 82,344
Reserve-Based Credit Facility (2) — — — 715,000 — — 715,000
Term Loan (2) 938 1,250 1,250 120,937 — — 124,375
Senior Notes due 2024 and interest 5,449 7,265 7,265 7,265 7,265 90,106 124,615
Operating leases 976 1,187 1,135 1,170 1,205 4,503 10,176
Development commitments (3) 36,727 — — — — — 36,727
Firm transportation agreements (4) 662 821 410 — — — 1,893
Lease financing obligations (5) 5,442 5,442 4,358 1,279 — — 16,521
Other future obligations 351 308 — — — — 659
Total  $100,414 $47,328 $33,552 $850,667 $13,511 $ 223,755 $1,269,227

(1)Represents the discounted future plugging and abandonment costs of oil and natural gas wells and
decommissioning of our Elk Basin, Big Escambia Creek and Fairway gas plants. Please read Note 7 of the Notes to
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the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report for
additional information regarding our asset retirement obligations.

(2)This table does not include interest to be paid on the principal balances shown as the interest rates on our financingarrangements are variable.
(3)Represents authorized expenditures for drilling, completion and major workover projects.
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(4)
Represents transportation demand charges. Please read Note 8 of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report for additional information regarding our
firm transportation agreements.

(5) The Lease Financing Obligations are calculated based on the aggregate present value of minimum future
lease payments. The amounts presented include interest payable for each year.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

Adjusted EBITDA

We present Adjusted EBITDA in addition to our reported net income (loss) attributable to Vanguard
stockholders/unitholders in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure that is
defined as net income (loss) attributable to Vanguard stockholders/unitholders plus:

•Net income attributable to non-controlling interest.

The result is net income (loss) which includes the non-controlling interest. From this we add or subtract the following:

•Interest expense;

• Depreciation, depletion, amortization, and
accretion;

•Impairment of oil and natural gas properties;

•Exploration expense;

•Change in fair value of commodity derivative contracts;

•Net gains or losses on interest rate derivative contracts;

•Taxes;

•Compensation related items, which include share/unit-based compensation expense, unrealized fair value of phantomunits granted to officers and cash settlement of phantom units granted to officers;

•Reorganization items;

•Severance costs;

•Material costs incurred on strategic transactions; and

•Non-controlling interest amounts attributable to each of the items above which revert the calculation back to anamount attributable to the Vanguard stockholders/unitholders.

Adjusted EBITDA is used as a quantitative standard by our management and by external users of our financial
statements such as investors, research analysts and others to assess the financial performance of our assets without
regard to financing methods, capital structure or historical cost basis; the ability of our assets to generate cash
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sufficient to pay interest costs and support our indebtedness; and our operating performance and return on capital as
compared to those of other companies in our industry.

Our Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss), operating income, cash flow
from operating activities or any other measure of financial performance or liquidity presented in accordance with
GAAP. Our Adjusted EBITDA excludes some, but not all, items that affect net income and operating income and
these measures may vary among other companies. Therefore, our Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures of other companies.
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Adjusted EBITDA attributable to Vanguard stockholders/unitholders for the three months ended March 31, 2018
(Successor) was $52.0 million compared to $62.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Predecessor).
The following table presents a reconciliation of consolidated net loss to Adjusted EBITDA (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor
Three
Months

Three
Months

Ended Ended
March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

Net loss attributable to Vanguard stockholders/unitholders $(32,684) $ (8,925 )
Add: Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 93 17
Net loss $(32,591) $ (8,908 )
Plus:
Interest expense 14,753 16,440
Depreciation, depletion, amortization, and accretion 40,039 25,729
Impairment of oil and natural gas properties 14,601 —
Exploration expense 1,316 —
Change in fair value of commodity derivative contracts (a) 9,293 —
Net gains on interest rate derivative contracts (b) — (30 )
Taxes — (356 )
Compensation related items 496 2,629
Reorganization items 1,707 26,746
Severance costs 2,256 —
Material costs incurred on strategic transactions 148 —
Adjusted EBITDA before non-controlling interest 52,018 62,250
Adjusted EBITDA attributable to non-controlling interest (37 ) (116 )
Adjusted EBITDA attributable to Vanguard stockholders/
unitholders $51,981 $ 62,134

(a)These items are included in the net gains (losses) on commodity derivative contracts line item in the condensedconsolidated statements of operations as follows:
Successor Predecessor
Three
Months

Three
Months

Ended Ended
March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

Net cash settlements received (paid) on matured commodity
derivative contracts $(9,292 ) $ 7

Change in fair value of commodity derivative contracts (9,293 ) —
Net gains (losses) on commodity derivative contracts $(18,585) $ 7

(b)Net gains on interest rate derivative contracts as shown on the condensed consolidated statements of operations iscomprised of the following:
Predecessor
Three
Months
Ended
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March 31,
2017

Cash settlements paid on interest rate derivative contracts $ (95 )
Change in fair value of interest rate derivative contracts 125
Net gains on interest rate derivative contracts $ 30
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The primary objective of the following information is to provide forward-looking quantitative and qualitative
information about our potential exposure to market risks. The term “market risk” refers to the risk of loss arising from
adverse changes in oil, natural gas and NGLs prices and interest rates. The disclosures are not meant to be precise
indicators of exposure, but rather indicators of potential exposure. This forward-looking information provides
indicators of how we view and manage our ongoing market risk exposures. All of our market risk sensitive
instruments were entered into for purposes other than speculative trading. Conditions sometimes arise where actual
production is less than estimated, which has, and could result in over-hedged volumes. For a detailed discussion of the
risk factors that relate to our potential exposure to market risks, please refer to Part I—Item 1A—Risk Factors in our 2017
Annual Report.

 Commodity Price Risk

Our primary market risk exposure is in the prices we receive for our oil, natural gas and NGLs production. Realized
pricing is primarily driven by prevailing spot market prices at our primary sales points and the applicable index prices.
Pricing for oil, natural gas and NGLs production has been volatile and unpredictable for several years, and we expect
this volatility to continue in the future. The prices we receive for production depend on many factors outside our
control. In addition, the potential exists that if commodity prices decline to a certain level, the borrowing base for our
Successor Credit Facility can be decreased at the borrowing base redetermination date to an amount lower than the
amount of debt currently outstanding and, because it would be uneconomical, production could decline to levels
below our hedged volumes. Furthermore, the risk that we will be required to write-down the carrying value of our oil
and natural gas properties increases when oil and natural gas prices are low or volatile. In addition, write-downs may
occur if we experience substantial downward adjustments to our estimated proved reserves, or if estimated future
development costs increase.

We routinely enter into derivative contracts with respect to a portion of our projected oil and natural gas production
through various transactions that mitigate the volatility of future prices received as follows:

•Fixed-price swaps - where we will receive a fixed-price for our production and pay a variable market price to thecontract counterparty.

• Collars - where we pay the counterparty if the market price is above the ceiling price (short call) and the
counterparty pays us if the market price is below the floor (long put) on a notional quantity.

In deciding which type of derivative instrument to use, our management considers the relative benefit of each type
against any cost that would be incurred, prevailing commodity market conditions and management’s view on future
commodity pricing. The amount of oil and natural gas production which is hedged is determined by applying a
percentage to the expected amount of production in our most current reserve report in a given year. Typically,
management intends to hedge 75% to 90% of projected oil and natural gas production from proved developed
producing reserves up to a three to four year period. These activities are intended to support our realized commodity
prices at targeted levels and to manage our exposure to oil and natural gas price fluctuations. We have also entered
into fixed-price swaps derivative contracts to cover a portion of our NGLs production to reduce exposure to
fluctuations in NGLs prices. However, a liquid, readily available and commercially viable market for hedging NGLs
has not developed in the same way that exists for crude oil and natural gas. The current direct NGL hedging market is
constrained in terms of price, volume, duration and number of counterparties, which limits our ability to hedge our
NGL production effectively or at all. It is never management’s intention to hold or issue derivative instruments for
speculative trading purposes. Management will consider liquidating a derivative contract, if they believe that they can
take advantage of an unusual market condition allowing them to realize a current gain and then have the ability to
enter into a new derivative contract in the future at or above the commodity price of the contract that was liquidated.
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At March 31, 2018, the fair value of commodity derivative contracts was a liability of approximately $73.7 million, of
which $48.3 million settles during the next twelve months.

The following tables summarize oil, natural gas and NGLs commodity derivative contracts in place at March 31,
2018.
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April 1 -
December
31, 2018

Year
 2019

Year
 2020

Year
 2021

Gas Positions:
Fixed-Price Swaps:
Notional Volume (MMBtu) 52,093,000 52,539,000 47,227,500 —
Fixed Price ($/MMBtu) $ 2.89 $ 2.79 $ 2.75 $ —
Collars:
Notional Volume (MMBtu) — 4,125,000 5,490,000 1,825,000
Floor Price ($/MMBtu) $ — $ 2.60 $ 2.60 $ 2.60
Ceiling Price ($/MMBtu) $ — $ 3.00 $ 3.00 $ 3.07

April 1 -
December
31, 2018

Year
 2019

Year
 2020

Year
 2021

Oil Positions:
Fixed-Price Swaps (West Texas Intermediate):
Notional Volume (Bbls) 2,014,950 1,858,200 1,393,800 —
Fixed Price ($/Bbl) $ 46.60 $ 48.50 $ 49.53 $ —
Collars:
Notional Volume (Bbls) — 575,730 659,340 3,409,972
Floor Price ($/Bbl) $ — $ 43.81 $ 44.17 $ 47.50
Ceiling Price ($/Bbl) $ — $ 54.04 $ 55.00 $ 56.05

April 1 -
December
31, 2018

Year
 2019

NGLs Positions:
Fixed-Price Swaps:
Mont Belvieu Ethane
Notional Volume (Gallons) 6,930,000 2,494,779
Fixed Price ($/Gallon) $ 0.28 $ 0.29
Mont Belvieu Propane
Notional Volume (Gallons) 17,325,000 6,270,427
Fixed Price ($/Gallon) $ 0.53 $ 0.71
Mont Belvieu N. Butane
Notional Volume (Gallons) 5,775,000 2,272,940
Fixed Price ($/Gallon) $ 0.65 $ 0.82
Mont Belvieu Isobutane
Notional Volume (Gallons) 4,620,000 1,847,179
Fixed Price ($/Gallon) $ 0.65 $ 0.83
Mont Belvieu N. Gasoline
Notional Volume (Gallons) 8,085,000 3,328,417
Fixed Price ($/Gallon) $ 0.99 $ 1.23

Interest Rate Risks
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At March 31, 2018, we had debt outstanding of $926.1 million. The amount outstanding under our Successor Credit
Facility at March 31, 2018 was approximately $839.4 million and is subject to interest at floating rates based on
LIBOR. If the debt remains the same, a 10% increase in LIBOR would result in an estimated $1.5 million increase in
annual interest expense.
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Counterparty Risk

At March 31, 2018, based upon all of our open derivative contracts shown above and their respective mark to market
values, we had the following current and long-term derivative liabilities shown by counterparty with their current
Standard & Poor’s financial strength rating in parentheses (in thousands):

Current
Liabilities

Long-Term
Liabilities

Total
Amount
Owed To
Counterparty
at
March 31,
2018

ABN AMRO (A) $(26,264) $ (4,690 ) $ (30,954 )
Capital One (BBB+) (1,253 ) (6,018 ) (7,271 )
Citibank (A+) (15,148 ) (4,150 ) (19,298 )
Huntington Bank (BBB+) (5,161 ) (9,774 ) (14,935 )
JP Morgan (A-) (444 ) (828 ) (1,272 )
Total $(48,270) $ (25,460 ) $ (73,730 )

In order to mitigate the credit risk of financial instruments, we enter into master netting agreements with our
counterparties. The master netting agreement is a standardized, bilateral contract between a given counterparty and us.
Instead of treating each financial transaction between the counterparty and us separately, the master netting agreement
enables the counterparty and us to aggregate all financial trades and treat them as a single agreement. This
arrangement is intended to benefit us in two ways: (i) default by a counterparty under one financial trade can trigger
rights to terminate all financial trades with such counterparty; and (ii) netting of settlement amounts reduces our credit
exposure to a given counterparty in the event of close-out.

Item 4.  Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) promulgated under the Exchange Act, we have evaluated, under the supervision and
with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report. Our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be
disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure and is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the rules and forms of the SEC. Based upon the evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2018 at the
reasonable assurance level.     

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the first quarter of 2018
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings

There have been no material developments with respect to the legal proceedings described in our 2017 Annual Report
since the filing thereof.

We are also defendants in certain legal proceedings arising in the normal course of our business. Management does
not believe that it is probable that the outcome of these actions will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
condensed consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flow, although the ultimate outcome and
impact of such legal proceedings on the Company cannot be predicted with certainty. Furthermore, our insurance may
not be adequate to cover all liabilities that may arise out of claims brought against us. If one or more negative
outcomes were to occur relative to these matters, the aggregate impact to our financial position, results of operations
or cash flow could be material. As of March 31, 2018, we have not reserved any loss contingencies related to our legal
proceedings in our financial statements because our management believes a loss arising from these proceedings is not
probable and not reasonably estimable.

In addition, we are not aware of any legal or governmental proceedings against us, or contemplated to be brought
against us, under applicable environmental laws, that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
condensed consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flow. 

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

Our business faces many risks. Any of the risks discussed in this Quarterly Report or our other SEC filings could have
a material impact on our business, financial position or results of operations. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also impair our business operations. For a
detailed discussion of the risk factors that should be understood by any investor contemplating investment in our
securities, please refer to Part I-Item 1A-Risk Factors in our 2017 Annual Report. There have been no material
changes to the risk factors set forth in our 2017 Annual Report.

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3.  Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5.  Other Information

None.
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Item 6.  Exhibits

Each exhibit identified below is filed as a part of this Report.
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

2.1
Modified Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization under Chapter 11 of Bankruptcy Code of Vanguard
Natural Resources, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to our Predecessor’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed July 19, 2017)

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K15D5 filed August 2, 2017)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K15D5 filed August 2, 2017)

3.3 Certificate of Amendment as filed with the Delaware Secretary of State (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 29, 2017)

4.1
Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2017, among Vanguard Natural Resources, Inc., the
guarantors named therein and Delaware Trust Company, as trustee and collateral trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K15D5 filed August 2, 2017)

31.1* Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer
31.2* Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer
32.1* Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
32.2* Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

101.INS* XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH* XBRL Schema Document
101.CAL* XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF* XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB* XBRL Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE* XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
_______________
*Provided herewith.
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1384072/000138407217000129/ex31charteramendment.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1384072/000138407217000129/ex31charteramendment.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1384072/000114420417039779/v472039_ex4-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1384072/000114420417039779/v472039_ex4-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1384072/000114420417039779/v472039_ex4-1.htm


SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

VANGUARD NATURAL RESOURCES, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: May 9, 2018 /s/ Ryan Midgett
Ryan Midgett
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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